Virginia M. Barry, Ph.D.
Commissioner of Education
Tel. 603-271-3144

Paul K. Leather
Deputy Commissioner of Education
Tel. 603-271-3801

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
101 Pleasant Street
Concord, N.H. 03301
FAX 603-271-1953
Citizens Services Line 1-800-339-9900

February 29, 2016

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Education, Bureau of Special Education to amend a
contract with Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Concord, New Hampshire (Vendor Code
#159021) by increasing the price limitation by $ 59,447.21 from $600,000 to $659,447.21 to continue to
develop and implement a statewide technical assistance (TA) and professional development (PD) system
designed to increase the implementation of effective practices and enhance outcomes for students who are
deaf or hard of hearing and their families, effective from the date of Governor and Council approval
through December 31, 2017. The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on May 27,
2015 (Item #126). 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2016 and 2017, and are anticipated to
be available in SFY 2018 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget
Office, without further approval from the Governor and Council, if needed and justified:

Special Education-Elem/Sec
06-56-56-562510-41100000-102-500731 Contracts for Program Services

Current Contract Price Increase Revised Contract

FY15 $100,000.00

FY16 $200,000.00 $ 5,771.53 $205,771.53
FY17 $200,000.00 $32,486.59 $232,486.59
FY18 $100.000.00 $21.189.09 $121.189.09
Total $600,000.00 $59,447.21 $659,447.21

TDD Access: Relay NH 711
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES
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and the Honorable Executive Council
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EXPLANATION

The Department of Education would like to amend this agreement with Northeast Deaf and Hard of
Hearing Services to provide for additional needed personnel to support the increased demand of the
services provided, not originally anticipated, to support the delivery of essential professional development
and project sustainability efforts.

The technical assistance/professional development (TA/PD) system will be designed using adult learning
methods and strategies to:

e Coordinate and provide TA/PD for administrators/decision makers, teachers, families and
professionals with information about federal statutes, policy guidance, and promising practices
from the field of deaf education;

e Provide TA/PD resources and information regarding the New Hampshire Educational Service
Guidelines: Meeting the Needs of Students who are Deaf and Hard of Hearing.

¢ Coordinate and provide specific TA/PD based on the national initiative, funded by the Office of
Special Education Program - Building State Capacity to increase the educational, career and
lifetime choices available to individuals who are deaf or hard of hearing and to improve
postsecondary outcomes for individuals who are deaf or hard of hearing, including those with co-
occurring disabilities.

This contract will support the Bureau of Special Education in meeting the legislative mandate to provide
technical assistance based on:

RSA 186-C:3(2)(11]) ~ The department of education shall provide technical assistance and information to
the school districts so that the districts may effectively and efficiently identify, clarify and address their
specific responsibilities under state and federal special education laws. This assistance shall include the
provision of mediation services to resolve special education disputes and the provision of expertise
regarding specific educationally disabling conditions. Whenever technical assistance of a specialized
nature, beyond that available in the department, is required, the department shall assume a leadership
role in identifying sources of such assistance in other state agencies, the federal government, volunteer
services or the private sector.

A Request for Proposals (RFP), for the original contract, was advertised in the Manchester Union Leader
on November 5-7, 2014 and posted on the Department’s website. Three proposals were submitted in
response to the RFP from Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services; Southeast Regional Education
Services Center, Inc., and ATECH Services. The proposals were reviewed by a team of four special
education professionals. The Department awarded the contract to Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing
Services because they meet all the RFP criteria.

TDD Access: Relay NH 711
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and the Honorable Executive Council
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This project is evaluated by the Department through monthly monitoring of the goals of the contract. In
addition, the vendor meets with the Department, also on a monthly basis, to discuss the progress in
meeting the objectives of this contract.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Vlrgigla M. Barry, Ph D

Commissioner of Education

TDD Access: Relay NH 711
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



AMENDMENT TO SERVICES CONTRACT

Now come the New Hampshire Department of Education, Bureau of Special Education, hereinafter “the
Agency,” and Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Concord, New Hampshire hereinafter “the
Contractor”, and, pursuant to an agreement between the parties that was approved by Governor and
Council on May 27, 2015 (Item #126) hereby agree to modify same as follows:

L.

Amend Section 1.8 of the Contract Agreement by increasing the Price Limitation by $59,447.21
from $600.000 to $659,447.21.

Amend Exhibit A (Scope of Services) by expanding the support for the increased demand of
program services provided, not originally anticipated.

Amendment — Increase the scope of services by having the program assistant join the team full
time to assume outstanding responsibilities to meet the unanticipated increase in demand of
services provided by the program. Program Assistant, Emily K. Graves, will provide scheduling
workshops, maintain content on the program’s website, provide administrative support, record
keeping, and other activities needed to support the project.

Amend Exhibit B, by increasing the FY 16 budget by $ 5771.53 from $200,000.00 to $205,771.53,
by increasing the FY 17 budget by $32486.59 from $200,000.00 to $232,486.59, and by increasing
the FY18 budget by $21,189.09 from $100,000.00 to $121,189.09, with the contract price

limitation becoming $659,447.21.

FY’15 FY’l6 Adjusted FY’17 Adjusted FY’18 Adjusted
Description of G&C July 1, Budget July 1, Budget July 1, Budget
Services approval — 2015- 2016-June 2017 -
June 30, June 30, 30,2017 December
2015 2016 31,2017

Project
Coordinator 30,000.00 61,200.00 62,424.00 31,836.24
Executive
Director 4,369.00 8,912.76 9,091.00 4,636.42
Assistant 6,500.00 13,260.00 13,525.00 | 22356.56 3,897.85 | 14402.90
Bookkeeper 1,638.00 3,341.52 3,408.35 1,738.26
Staff Support 1,000.00 2,040.00 2,081.00 1,061.21
Clerical Support 665.00 1,356.60 1,383.73 705.70
Benefits 8,371.00 | 17,076.84 | 534401 | 1741838 | 10223.62 8,883.37 | 5216.63
Travel 3,100.00 6,324.00 6,450.48 3,289.74
Professional -2500.00
Development 13,657.00 27,236.28 25,781.01 14,148.32
Consultants 7,192.00 13,408.72 11,917.42 6,077.88
Interpreters 2,250.00 4,590.00 4,681.80 2,387.72
Communication
Access Real
Time
Translation
(CART) 4,500.00 9,180.00 9,363.60 4,726.43
Website
Maintenance/
Expansion 1,950.00 3,570.00 3,641.40 1,857.11
Office Supplies 1,450.00 1,958.00 1,997.16 1,018.55




Postage/Teleco
mmunications 1,950.00 3,570.00 3,641.40 1,857.11
Conference
Room for
Trainings 1,500.00 3,060.00 3,121.20 1,591.81
Assistive
Technical/Equi
ment 2,500.00 5,100.00 5,202.00 2,653.02
Indirect cost 8% 7,408.00 14,815.28 427.52 14,871.07 2406.41 7,633.26 1569.56
Total 100,000.00 | 200,000.00 5771.53 | 200,000.00 | 32486.59 | 100,000.00 | 21189.09
FY15 Total budget $100,000.00
FY 16 Revised budget $205,771.53
FY 17 Revised budget $232,486.59
FY18 Revised budget $121,189.09
Total Revised Contract Price  $659.447.21

4. All other provisions of the contract shall remain in effect.

5. This modification shall be effective on the date of approval by Governor and Council.

This modification of an existing agreement is hereby incorporated by reference into the existing
agreement by the parties and must be attached to the said agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands as of the day and year first above

written.

By:ﬂ’/ﬂ{

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
Department of Education

Virging

Northeast Deaf and Hai

M. Barr}", Commissiondr of Education

I

ms

By 27 and) -

Susan Wolf-Downes, E&cutive Director
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STATE OF M \Lbf)t[}@})

County of

On this theﬁ day o\f-77/)dr (,/) before me, (3/0 [é/ )éa) r ,the undersigned

who acknowledged himself/herself to be
a corporation, and that he/sh
JEIV. . , being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing mstrumqpt

therein  contained, by, signing; the nam

ui’ﬁuu,,, ",

ey of the corporation by hlmselﬁﬁer msr,o

/ rdl &A1z 1CSpIIC. §/ Oo.,‘g{;‘:
InWI?iESS WHEREOF, I heggto set my hand and official seal. %z‘ég\octﬂzs‘,’, i
é/l [ 22" e e’

7 g PENGS

/’/&4 LTI e

%ﬁe/f‘stice of (hf{v Peace /,”"%ﬁmm\\?“

Approvéd as to form, substance and execution by the Attorney General this 284 day of

rasib. , 200 ///

fice ok( ttorney ‘General .

Approved by the Governor and Council this day of

By:
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State of Nefo Hampshive
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC. isa
New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed April 28, 2000. I further certify that it is in
good standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the

fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOQF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 9" day of February A.D. 2016

ey Eide—

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




Cedificate of Authority

{Likl' “_\',M_‘,_v\ mpre/ Secretary of ‘ZZQA’['/S‘ e _do nereby certfy

’ho? :

o fmaintain and have custedy of and am familiar with the seal and minute books of the corporatic

i2) Fam authorized 1o issue certificates with respect to the contents of such books and 1o affix such sea
to such certificate:

13 The follewing fis aj {are} true and compleie coply)lies) of the resolution(s) adopted by the board of
directors of the corporation at a meeting of that board or ) uwAé—~ 21 . 20 0 bwhich meeting
waQs held in accordance with the law of the state of incorporation and the by-laws of the
corporation:

The Center enters into a contract with the State of New Hampshire to provide independent living
services. This resolution sholl remain in effect until specifically revolved.

{4 The foliowing is a frue and complete copy of a by-law adopted at a {shareholder! [organizational)
meetng on , \q_(._llrzao\

i5) The: toregoing resolution{s) and by-iaw are in full force and effect, unamended. as of the date

- g j
nereot and
e e following person{s) lawfully occupy the office(s) indicated below:

_ZI‘AM Le /:rsxé _ Cnair
Arr—r—&fﬁrﬂf&ﬂﬁﬂ C e, Secretary

V*LALLA}‘/MMQ'* 2. Treasurer

N WITNESS WHEREOF | hgge hergunto set my hand
day of 0743 ﬁ 0 LG

iCorperate Seal if any;

"lérk/\ecréiory
(If the corporation has no seal, the Clerk/Secretary shall acknowledge the cedificate before an authorized
officer below)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COUNTY OF _Leitq .5%90&.10/;/ , /

on MA—_@C/J‘_ 2 2 /é before the unders*g'\e;i er personally appeared e
per on .demmed in the forﬁgomq certificate. know 1o me {or sat csfocfoniy, proven} to be the Clerk/Secretary
of the corporation identified in the foregoing certificate. and acknowl 'ge fbo? __he__executed the
fo@gung certificate.

in wilness whereof | hereunto set my hand and otﬁuol S

\\\\\\“““”IIII e G

g\vﬂEN /5/9’//

/’/
N
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0

My
COMMISSION
EXPIRES
JUNE 20, 2017
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NDHH S 57 Regional Drive Unit D, Concord, NH 03301
603-224-1850 Voice, 603-968-5889 VP

Northeast Deaf and 603-856-0242 Fax, 603-224-0691 TTY
Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. www.ndhhs.org

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.

Resolution

I, Norman Lafond, hereby certify that I am the duly elected Chairman of Northeast Deaf and Hard of
Hearing Services, Inc. I hereby certify that a vote was taken on July 10, 2014 authorizing Susan Wolf-
Downes, Executive Director, to sign all documents required to execute a contract with the State of New

Hampshire’s Department of Education.

I further certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as

of this date, March 2, 2016.

Signature: Womsy Cqmnadr

Norman Lafond, Chair

Date: 53/51/’é
March 2, 2016

Signature: M/A/MX;'VVLM—/

Susan Wolf-Downeg, Executive Director

Date: \79/ i/ /6
March 2, 2016

Fin\contracts\resolution 03-02-2016
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

NORTDEA-01

SCOLE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
2/8/2016

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER

Davis & Towle Morrill & Everett, Inc.
115 Airport Road

Concord, NH 03301

CONTACT Sherri A. Cole, ACSR

{A10: No, Ext) (603) 715-9764

[P oy (603) 225-7935

ML ¢s: scole@davistowle.com

INSURER(S) AFF ORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
insurer A : MMG Insurance Company 15997
INSURED surer B : Travelers Indemnity Co. 81399
Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing INSURER C :
Services, Inc. SURER D -
57 Regional Drive, Suite 4 INSURERD :
Concord, NH 03301-8518 INSURERE :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDLISUER
LTR

POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD,

TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WVD POLICY NUMBER ) | (MMDDIYYYY) LIMITS
A X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1 ,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
cLams-mane | X | occur 04/23/2015 | 04/23/2016 | DAVACETORENTED ~~ ™'g 250,000
[ — MED EXP {(Any one person) 3 5,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000,
ENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPUES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
X | pouicy RO Loc ’ PRODUCTS - COMP/IOP AGG | $ 2,000,000
OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY A $
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
Q'L-,Lng’/NED ﬁﬁﬁggULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident) $
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
A EXCESS LIAB X | cLAMS-MADE 04/23/2015 | 04/23/2016 | AGGREGATE $ 1,000,000
DED ‘ X l RETENTION 10,000 $
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER ‘7 oTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN XT STATUTE , ER
B | ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 04/14/2015 | 04/14/2016 | £ EACH ACCIDENT $ 500,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? E N/A
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] $ 500,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 500,000

Workers Compensation 3A States: NH

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

New Hampshire Department of Education
Bureau of Special Education

Londergan Hall

101 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF,
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

o Cole

ACORD 25 (2014/01)

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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McLarney & Company, LLC

Certified Public Accountants & Business Advisors

Brian F. McLarney, MBA, CPA/PFS Robert F. Siggens, MST, CPA

James O. Nash, MSA, CPA Shawn R. Tewksbury, CPA, CFP
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.

57 Regional Drive

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization) as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the
year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Northeast
Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the changes in its net assets

and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 11, 2016, on our consideration
of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services,
Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

M Lornoy g Corgporsy. SLE

McLarney & Company, LLC
January 11, 2016

One Tremont Streer, Concord, NH -. Phone: 603-224-4990 -. Fax: 603-226-0030




Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services

Statements of Financial Position

For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

Current Assets
Cash (Note 2, 5)
Accounts Receivable (Note 2)
Grants Receivable - Current (Note 3, 5)
Prepaid Expenses
Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets (Note 1)
Furniture and Fixtures
Office Equipment, Computers
Software Development, Net
Accumulated Depreciation
Total Fixed Assets, Net

TOTAL ASSETS

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses

Total Current Liabilities

Net Assets
Net Assets (Note 2, 5)

ASSETS

Temporarily Permanently 2015 2014

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total
$ 87,525 $ - $ - $ 87,525 $ 95,600
54,235 - - 54,235 22,164
74,198 - - 74,198 45,052
4,312 - - 4312 3,574
220,270 - - 220,270 166,390
7,756 - - 7,756 6,978
45,392 - - 45,392 45,392
13,515 - - 13,515 15,028
(50,669) - - (50,669) (49,408)
15,995 - - 15,995 17,991
$ 236,265 $ - $ - $ 236,265 $ 184,381

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$ 39,108 $ - $ - $ 39,108 §$ 14,980
9,833 - 9,833 6,902
48,941 - 48,941 21,882
187,324 - 187,324 162,499
$ - $ - 236,265 § 184,381

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS § 236,265

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report

Page 2



Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services
Statements of Activities
For the Years Ended June 30,2015 and 2014

Revenue and Support (Note 2, 9)
Foundation Grants
Government Grants
Contributions
Program Revenue
Referral Fees
Interest Income
TOTAL REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Functional Expenses

Program Services
Adult Education
Outreach
Referral Services
TTY - Relay
Supporting_Services
General & Administrative
Fund Raising

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (Note 9)

Net Assets - Beginning of Year

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report

Temporarily Permanently 2015 2014

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
$ 25,000 h $ 25,000 $ 37,250
284,092 284,092 355,172
53,814 53,814 51,900
228,343 228,343 192,445
70,430 70,430 61,315
46 46 20
661,726 661,726 698,101
144,378 144,378 167,661
32,728 32,728 65,507
328,648 328,648 326,207
68,530 68,530 66,385
57,261 57,261 50,683
5,357 5,357 4,790
636,901 636,901 681,234
24,825 24,825 16,868
162,499 162,499 145,631
$ 187324 § $ 187,324 $ 162,499

Page 3



Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services

Statements of Cash Flows
June 30, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in Net Assets $ 24825 % 16,868
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation 1,261 1,521
Amortization 1,513 1,670
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (32,071) (4,002)
(Increase) decrease in grants receivable (29,146) 36,916
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (738) (338)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 24,129 (17,766)
Increase (decrease) in other accrued liabilities 2,930 560
Increase (decrease) in payroll taxes - -
Total adjustments (32,122) 18,561
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (7,296) $ 35,429
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities - -
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Proceeds related to fixed asset settlement - -
Acquisition of office equipment & furniture (778) (16,698)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (778) (16,698)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH $ 8,075 % 18,731
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 95,600 $ 76,869
CASH AT END OF YEAR $ 87,525 §$ 95,600

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report
Page 4
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NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION
Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. (the "Organization") is a non-profit
organization dedicated to serving deaf and hard of hearing individuals in a culturally
sensitive environment that is communicationally unrestricted and “natural”, and which
promotes independence and productivity. It is the mission of the organization to
empower, educate and advocate for equal access and opportunity for deaf and hard of
hearing citizens of New Hampshire.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board in its Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under SFAS
No. 117, the Organization is required to report information regarding its financial
position and activities according to three classes of net assets; unrestricted net assets,
which represents the expendable resources that are available for operations at
management’s discretion; temporarily restricted net assets, which represents resources
restricted by donors as to purpose or by the passage of time; and permanently restricted
net assets, which represent resources whose use by the organization is limited by donor-
imposed stipulations that neither expire by passage of time nor can be fulfilled or
otherwise removed by the actions of the organization. Northeast Deaf and Hard of
Hearing Services, Inc. presently has no permanently restricted net assets.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized as services are rendered using the accrual method of accounting.
The Organization recognizes all contributions as revenue in the period received.
Contributions are reported as unrestricted or as restricted depending on the existence of
donor stipulations that limit the use of the contribution. However, donor-restricted
contributions whose restrictions are met in the same reporting period are reported as
unrestricted contributions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, temporary cash investments which can be
turned into cash in three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable are considered by management to be fully collectible and
accordingly no allowance for doubtful accounts is considered necessary.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles requires the use of estimates made by the management of the
Organization.

Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are charged to operations when incurred.
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NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, or, if donated, at the fair value at the date
of donation. Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. follows the policy of
capitalizing expenditures for property and equipment in excess of $500. Major
renewals and improvements are capitalized, while replacements, maintenance and
repairs, which do not materially extend the useful lives of the assets, are expensed.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Office Equipment and Furniture 5-7 years
Development of Software 5 years

Depreciation amounts expensed and reflected in the statements of activities for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 is $1,261 and $1,521, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code. In addition, the Organization qualifies for the charitable
contribution deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(A) and has been classified as an
organization other than a private foundation under Section 509(a)(2).

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued interpretation No. 48
(“FIN 48), “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes” which the Organization
elected to adopt in the current year. FIN 48 establishes the minimum theshold for
recognizing, and a system for measuring, the benefits of tax return positions in
financial statements. Management has analyzed the Organization’s tax positions taken
on its tax returns for all open tax years (tax years ended June 2009 — 2011) for puposes
of implementing FIN 48, and has concluded that no additional provision for income
tax is required in the Organization’s financial statements.

Functional Expense Allocation

The cost of providing various programs and other activities has been summarized in the
statement of support and functional expenses, and the changes in fund balances.
Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting
services benefited.  Allocations have been made by the management of the
Organization.

Donated Services

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets or that
require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and
would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, are recorded at their
fair values in the period received

Page 7



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 3 - GRANTS RECEIVABLE
Grants receivable represent grants for which the donor organization has

unconditionally committed to providing funding in the future. Grants receivable are
recognized as income on the statement of activities at the time the commitment is
made by the donor organization. Grant commitments which will not be received
within the next twelve months are reflected as other assets on the statement of
financial position. The method of accounting for grants receivable has the affect of
creating fluctuations between positive and negative changes in net assets from year to
year as reflected on the statement of activities.

Grants for which the donor organization places contingencies are recognized as
support when the funds are actually received or when the contingency has been
satisfied.

All grants are expected to be received; therefore, no allowance for doubtful accounts
has been established.

NOTE 4 - PENSION PLAN :
Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. sponsors a 403(b) Tax Deferred
Annuity Plan. Employees are eligible to participate in the plan following a 12
consecutive month period of employment of at least 1,000 hours of service. All
eligible employees may elect to have employee elective deferrals. Northeast Deaf and-
Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. currently makes no mandatory -or discretionary
contributions.

NOTE S - SUPPLEMENTAL CASH INFORMATION

There were no non cash activities during 2015 and 2014.

NOTE 6 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
The Organization maintains an operating account at one bank. Operating accounts at
an institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to
$250,000. Cash at this institution exceeded Federally insured limits at June 30, 2015
and 2014 by $0 and $0, respectively.

The Organization receives all its revenue from New Hampshire sources.
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NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 7 - COMMITMENTS
The Organization entered into a lease in Concord starting in October 2007 for four

years. The rent is $2,850 per month for the first two years with an increase in the third
and fourth years. In 2011 the lease was extended to October 2014 for $3,700 per month.
The lease is now month to month for $3.700 per month. Rent expense for the years
ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 were $44,400 and $44,400, respectively.

The Organization entered into an equipment lease in June 2012. The lease is for a
copier for $135 per month for five years. Lease expense for the years ended June 30,
2015 and 2014 were $1,886 and $2,021, respectively. There are no other operating
lease commitments.

Future minimum lease payments required for the year ended:

June 30, 2016 $ 1,616
June 30, 2017 $ 1,481

NOTE 8 - CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
The change in net assets for the years ending June 30,.2015 and 2014 are $24,825 and, -

$16,868 respectively.

NOTE 9 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through January 11, 2016, which is the
date the financial statements were available to be issued for events requiring recording or
disclosure in the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2015 and none were
found.
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McLarney & Company, LL.C

Certified Public Accountants & Business Advisors
Brian F. McLarney, MBA, CPA/PFS Robert F. Siggens, MST, CPA

James O. Nash, MSA, CPA Shawn R. Tewksbury, CPA, CFP

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees of

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.
57 Regional Drive

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the
financial statements of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of
financial position as of June 30, 2015, and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 11, 2016.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The resuits of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

M Lirnoy g Compansy, LLE

McLamey & Company, LLC
January 11, 2015

One Tremont Streer, Concord, NH -. Phone: 603-224-4990 -. Fax: 603-226-0030
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NDHHS 2015_2016 BOD_Contact_List.xIs

Board Member

VP=

Voice

Email

Deaf, Hard of Hearing or Hearing
Title

Direct VP or Sorenson VRS

Name/Occupation Title/Committees Term Ends Address Contact Info
L Norman Lafond Sr. Chairman Jul-18 H
IT=__|Retired - Sr. Prof. Network Enanieer Executive Committee I
= _|Deaf
12___|Michael Ritter Vice-Chairman Oct-18 I
T=_|Architect Executive Committee (
M= Deaf
3 Peter Simoneau Secretary Jan-19 ‘
T= _|Lawver Executive Committee !
M= Hearing ; .
14 [Vincent Youmatz Treasurer W Oct-18
T=_ [Lawver Executive Committee L - !
= |Hearina ,‘ S i |
Eileen Flockhart Board Member. - Jul-17 ‘
T=__|Retired --NH State Representative Auctior’ Chairperson |
=_Heorina S S
& |Leanne Weiner - ‘|Board Memiber Aor-18 |
= _|USPS Letter Carrier . , (
= |Deaf : . .
7 _|Steve Ballou. Ph.D Board Member Apr-18
= :.m%»oﬁ of Proararm Trainina Resources .
= Hearing . ! L
8 |Deborah Bailey: Board Member Jan-18
= Sveech Lanauaae. _uo+:o_oo_m+
= |Hearing
_ Open Board Member
10 open Board Member



All Board Members at the Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing are
volunteers and do not receive compensation.
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Susan Wolf-Downes, MS

Executive Director - Manage an agency with a budget of $800,000 that was established in April 2001 to serve the
Deaf, Hard of Hearing, Late Deafened and Deaf/Blind communities. Act as liaison with the New Hampshire State
Legislature on issues related to the Deaf, Hard of Hearing, Late Deafened, Oral Deaf, Deaf/Blind and individuals who
have multiple disabilities in addition to hearing loss. Oversight the centralize organization related to hearing loss
issues. Provide advocacy and presentations to state, hospitals, and private agencies to inform them about NDHHS
services. Search for funding sources to provide continued financial support for the center. Provide supervision and
support for 10 FT staff members, 1 PT part-time and several outsource contracts. Plan and oversee community
services including but not limited to the following:

Communication Access Services (Interpreter & CART referral)

Emergency Medical Interpreter Services

Information Referral

Supports Services for Deaf and Hard of Hearing Students
NH Telecommunication Equipment Distribution Program
NH Deaf/Blind Telecommunication Equipment Distribution Program
Service Coordination/Advocacy

Relay New Hampshire

Employment Support

Family Sign Language Program

Equipment and Materials Loan Program

Outreach Information & Education about Access

Program Specialist - Verizon Center for Customers with Disabilities (VCCD), Marlboro, MA 1995 to 2001

¢ Outreach Coordinator for the Verizon Equipment Distribution Program for all Disabilities:
e Equipment Program & Services/Products Presentations
e OQOutreach Cost Analysis
¢ Interpreter Services
Conduct Public Relations activities for Verizon
Provide staff support for Residential Customer Service Center
Represent Verizon to various Deaf and disability groups and organizations
Deliver training on Deaf and Disabled customers to new Verizon Representatives at VCCD
Provide presentations to various consumer groups and Verizon customers
Network / consult with various key departments within Verizon to ensure provision of optimum services
to all customers within New England and New York
e Knowledge and operation of CPE (Customer Premise Equipment) network

QOutreach Manager - N.E. Telephone Dual Party Relay Services, Marlboro, MA 1991-1995
e Assisted in development and creation of dual party relay services as mandated by passage of
Massachusetts Senate 390, which established requirements for provision of such services as well as
equipment distribution and E911 services.
e Provided initial training for current management team and New England Telephone Operator Services
e Develop new and additional training materials for new hires
e Served on the Maine Advisory Board Council 1993-1997
Independent Living Skills Specialist - Center for Living and Working, Worcester, MA. 1988 - 1991.
e Conducted advocacy and skills training for Deaf children and adults
e Advocacy with clients in court systems
e Certified Deaf Interpreter




American Sign Language and Deaf Culture Consultant 1984 to 1991
e Occasional volunteer interpreter
Training to agencies and residence serving Deaf clients with cognitive impairments
Communication evaluation and training for Deaf clients with cognitive impairments
Relay interpreting in medical and mental health settings
American Sign Language Instructor at various Universities, Colleges and Community Education
programs
e Provided Deaf Culture workshops

EDUCATION:
e Masters of Science in Management - New England College, Henniker, NH May - 2006
¢ Bachelor of Science in Management - Lesley University, Cambridge, MA  May - 2000

e Associate of Arts and Sciences in Business  Rochester Institute of Technology / National Technical
Institute for the Deaf, Rochester, NY May - 1971
PROFESSIONAL ACTIVITIES:

Affiliations:
¢ State Rehabilitation Council (SRC)
Statewide Independent Living Center (SILC)
Board of Trustees for New England Home for the Deaf (NEHD)
Formerly Chair and now Board of Trustees for Our Deaf Sisters’ Center (OSDC)
Former Membership Chair Disability Issues Awareness Leaders (Verizon)
National Registry of Interpreters
Alpha Sigma Alpha Sorority
Mass State Associate of the Deaf
NH State Associate for the Deaf
National Association for the Deaf

Achievements:
e Strengthening Communities Project (October 2011)
Nominated for Citizen of the Year (December 2010)
Executive Director’s Award from New Hampshire Association for the Deaf (June, 2007)
One of the 10 finalists for the Robert Wood Foundation Award (May, 2006)
One of the 4 nominated for New Hampshire Athena Award (4/19/06)
State of New Hampshire Craig R. Benson Governor-CITATION Award (11/21/03)
2003 Alumni Distinguished Award (10/10/03)
2003 SMSD AA Hall of Fame (Leadership Award) (6/28/03)
2002 Co-Master of Ceremony, Deaf Women United Conf. (DWU)
2001 First Executive Director for the State of NH
2001 Lady of Ceremony, Miss Deaf Massachusetts Pageant
2000 Allies Planning Team 5™ year (my role as a facilitator)
1998 Champion Award of the Year - Quota Club District 35
1998 Co-chair Allies Conference
1994 MSAD Vice President (2 years)
1994 NYNEX (now known as Verizon) Chairman’s Team Award for Quality
1994 Chairperson-Mass. State Association for the Deaf, Interpreter Task Force
1990 Woman of the Year - Quota Club District 29




Michele Chaplen Psy.D., M.Ed.

Career Objective

To promote the efficacy of schools and agencies which provide services to individuals with disabilities, by
utilizing my unique skill set developed within the fields of clinical psychology and special education.

Professional Experience

Manchester Program for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing — Manchester, NH Summer 2014
Teacher of the Deaf

e Taught pre-school through middle school students during the Extended School Year.

e Collaborated with program staff, parents and the larger school district.

e Reported on student progress as documented by the Incividualized Educational Plans

Bear Hollow Trading Post — Andover, NH February 2012-March 2014
Marketing Consultant
¢ Implemented strategies to attract consumers and enhance company performance.

e Presented research and data to determine favorable product conditions.
¢ Collaborated with community businesses to tailor promotional and launching events.
¢ Facilitated team building activities to improve business dynamics.
¢ Hired, trained, and supervised support staff.
Devereux Foundation — Rutland, MA August 2010-February 2012

Therapeutic Day School Clinician
¢ Provided individual and family therapy to Day Program students.
¢ Developed interventions to address school refusal behaviors.
¢ Administered diagnostic testing and collaborated with outside treatment providers.
e Offered professional support in confidential areas to administrators, faculty, parents and students.
August 2009-August 2010
Pre-Doctoral Intern, Boy’s Program
e Provided group, family and individual therapy to residential clients in the Boy’s Program.
¢ Conducted assessment batteries to support client treatment within internal and external agencies.
e Participated in milieu activities.

Western New England University — Springfield, MA August 2000 — May 2009
Adjunct Faculty Member, Communication Department

¢ Established, instructed and supervised the Communication Department’s Sign Language Program.

¢ Founded and advised Western New England University’s National Club for Sign Language.

¢ Facilitated diversity awareness events to support inclusion activities and Deaf education.

August 1998-May 2005

Assistant Director, Student Disabilities Department

¢ Provided academic support services to undergraduate students, faculty and staff.

¢ Evaluated accommodations for a least restrictive environment in accordance with the Americans

with Disabilities Act.
e Tutored students with various needs, including physical, psychological and cognitive disabilities.
e Created and supervised academic coaching interventions to foster self-determination.



The Willie Ross School for the Deaf — Longmeadow, MA September 1992-May 1998
Teacher of the Deaf
e Invited to apply for the position of President by the Willie Ross School for the Deaf in May 2012.
e Taught culturally diverse Deaf and hard-of-hearing students in a range of communication modalities.
¢ Coached three athletic teams to encourage extra-curricular participation and diversity awareness.
¢ Developed and presented language based computer software for the C.A.S.T National Conference at
WGBH Public Television, 1994 — 1996.
¢ Participated in the development of innovative science curriculum for the Deaf, as presented at the
A.G. Bell Conference, Clarke Science Symposium, 1993-1994.
o Established and coached the first Deaf Odyssey of the Mind team in the state of Massachusetts.

Education

e Antioch University New England — Keene, NH October 2010
Doctoral Degree in Clinical Psychology
Dissertation: Qualitative Research Project, “How Do Adolescents Describe Their Relationship
With Video Games?”

¢ Antioch University New England — Keene, NH June 2007
Master’s Degree in Clinical Psychology
¢  Smith College — Northampton, MA May 1992

Master’s Degree in Education: Children with Special Needs
Rothman Family and Smith Alumnae Scholarship Recipient
* Smith College — Northampton, MA May 1990
Bachelor’s Degree in Education and Child Studies
Education Department Liaison, Dean’s List 1989-1991

Professional Certifications
* FElementary Education Teaching Certification, #304171 1992
e Children with Special Needs: Audition Teaching Certification #304171 1992

Guest Speaker at Public Conferences
e How Do Adolescents Describe their Relationship with Video Games: Antioch University, Dissertation
Presentation, October, 2010.

o Captioning Software and Technological Research: C.A.S.T., WGBH Public Television, 1994 — 1996.
o Fast Plants Science Curriculum: A.G. Bell Conference, Clarke Science Symposium, 1993-1994.

Special Skills

¢ Proficiency in Total Communication Sign Language with experience in related Sign Language
systems

e Proficiency in Microsoft Word, Excell, Powerpoint, Kurweil Adaptive Technology, and Captioning
Software systems

Interests
e Co-owner of Quabbin Valley Alpaca Farm, 2002 — 2012
¢ Member of the Massachusetts Farm Bureau Association 2002-2012



Gayle P. Baird

Experience
Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. (NDHHS), Concord NH 05/2015 — Present
Accountant / Human Resources / Payroll

Perform highly complex budgetary work as well as complex and diverse administrative duties involving
fiscal, budgetary, personnel/payroll, and purchasing management necessary for general function of
multiple projects within the organization. Additional tasks include: Accounts Payable and Receivable
processing, grant and contract tracking and review, HR Policies and Procedures documentation, and
supervision of staff.

NH Governor's Commission on Disability, Concord NH 12/2007 — 05/2015
Accountant | / Human Resources / Payroll

Perform complex budgetary work as well as diverse administrative duties to include personnel and
payroll, project contract oversight, purchasing and accounts receivable management necessary for
general function of multiple organizational codes. Handled federal and state contracts as well as
developed tracking for same.

NH Governor’'s Commission on Disability, Concord NH 06/2005 — 12/2007
Senior Accounting Technician

Review, process, and report Accounts Payable and Receivable as well as budget creation, employee
management, A/R & A/P, grants, strategic planning organization, commission member tracking,
purchasing and inventory control, and payroll.

NH Governor's Commission on Disability, Concord NH 09/2004 - 06/2005
Secretary Il

Supervision of other employees doing related or similar work, including scheduling, time, accuracy,
performance appraisal, discipline, and recommending interviewing, hiring or terminating.

ProTemps, Concord NH 02/2004 - 09/2004
Temporary Accounting Staff to Pembroke Academy

Douglas, Leonard & Garvey, PC, Concord NH 11/2002 - 02/2004
Bookkeeper

To merge two functioning but outdated accounting packages into a new system. Responsible for all data
entry such as A/R & A/P and payroll.

Lavallee/Brensinger, PA, Manchester NH 07/1993 — 11/2002
Administrative Assistant

Confidential Correspondence; format and proof all correspondence, architectural specifications, and
dictation for staff, update and create master documents, reports, templates, and forms. Backup assistant
for data entry such as A/R & A/P.

BONHAM (BankOne NH Asset Management, a section of the FDIC taking receivership of 13 banks in
NH), Concord NH

ORE File Library Supervisor 04/1992 - 07/1993

Developed an organizational library, trained and supervised 2 staff and volunteers, generated reports
and audits regarding data collection and distribution of properties.
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Gayle P. Baird

BONHAM (BankOne NH Asset Management, a section of the FDIC taking receivership of 13 banks in
NH), Concord NH

Database Manager and Admin Assistant Il 07/1991 - 04/1992

Addressed the growing list of received properties managed by various banks and processed by various
loan officers.

Office Specialists, Manager & Central NH Employment, Laconia, NH
Temp Secretary & Admin Assist to real estate, Financial, Legal Firms 03/1991 — 06/1991

Education

Franklin Pierce University, Concord, NH - Working on Bachelor of Science in Business Management and
Accounting (2 courses from Certificate) Ongoing

SoNH - HR Certificate Program 08/2008

SoNH - Certified Public Supervisor Program 06/2006

SoNH - Certified Public Supervisor Program Tune-up 09/2008

Justice of the Peace, NH Current, Expires 10/03/2017

Notary, NH Current, Expires 11/14/2017
Littleton High School, Littleton, MA — Business/Office Program 06/1971
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EMILY K. GRAVES

e Project Management
e Proposal and Grant Writing Skills
e Customer Service
e Office/Program Management
e Proficient with Microsoft Office Applications and Google Apps

Education

University of New Hampshire Manchester Mount Holyoke College, South Hadley, MA
Bachelor of Sciences in May 2009, summa cum laude Bachelor of Arts in May 1999, cum laude
Sign Language Interpreting Major: English  Minor: Women’s Studies

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc
The leading New Hampshire agency for information and services for Deaf and Hard of Hearing people
Deaf & Hard of Hearing Education Initiative Project Assistant December 2015-Present

e Assist Project Coordinator in the implementation of the state guidelines for the education of Deaf
and hard of hearing students

e Assist Project Coordinator with development and maintenance of project website

e Assist Project Coordinator with the planning, development and implementation of professional
development efforts

e Maintain the state’s instructional materials and FM loan program

e Assist families, educators and the community with questions or concerns related to the education
of students who are Deaf or hard of hearing

e Assist in the recruiting efforts to improve the critical shortage area of service providers

e Attend meetings and create reports as necessary to satisfy funding requirements

e Other duties as assigned by the Project Coordinator

Lead Interpreter Referral Specialist October 2005-Present

e Manage 2500 sign language interpreter referral requests annually for New Hampshire courts,
hospitals, schools, and businesses

e Responsible for research, initiation, and coordination of Department database rebuild

e Advocate on behalf of Deaf and Hard of Hearing consumers for rights guaranteed under the
Americans with Disabilities Act

e Provide education and information about referral services to the public including in-person

presentations, phone consultations, and written literature

Coordinate with multi-state services and funding sources to meet Deaf consumers’ needs

Maintain interpreter, CART provider, and Deaf community contact information

Responsible for customer billing, inquiries, and resolution of issues

Primary office system administrator for computer network, hardware, and software



EMILY K. GRAVES

Sharing Yoga February 2012-Present
Offering yoga, t’ai chi, pilates, teacher training, and meditation
Administrative Team Member & Yoga Teacher

e Oversee all aspects of 6-week series classes and one-time workshops including event creation,
promotion, registration and organization

e Manage classes and workshops in Constant Contact and the Sharing Yoga website to include
student registrations, scheduling, waivers, and cancellations

e Responsible for financial projections, revenue performance, & quarterly reports based on series
class registrations

e Coordinate future class schedules with instructors & supervisor, including cancellations

e Teach the postures lab during 200-Hour Teacher Training program

e Draft and proofread press releases & marketing/newsletter emails

New Hampshire Association of REALTORS August 2004-October 2005

The business, industry and public policy advocate for private property rights in New Hampshire
Member Services Representative

Provided administrative support to Director of Finance, Education and Administration
Invoiced realtor offices and local boards of realtors, and recorded deposits

Managed data registration for NHAR annual convention

Assisted with new realtor member orientation and processed paperwork

Answered phone and website inquiries and managed day-to-day administration

Community Invelvement

Yoga Alliance, Registered Yoga Teacher, 200-Hour Level, 2011-present

Volunteer Instructor for Sharing Yoga’s Seva (selfless service) classes

Mount Holyoke College Class of 1999, Class Secretary, 2009-2014

New Hampshire Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf

0 Served as Student Representative (2008-2009), Secretary (2009 to 2010), and
Newsletter Editor (2009 to 2011) and member, (2008-present)



Objective:

Education:

Computer Skills:

Volunteer Work:

Paul Baravella

Address/Contact Information

To maintain a rewarding, productive and consistent position within an
organization where | can further my experience with American Sign
Language, the interpreting field and the Deaf community. | benefit the
organization by being a reliable and compassionate employee.

Massasoit Community College 2005-2008
Associates Degree Liberal Arts 3.8 GPA

* American Sign Language 1, 2

*+ Honors English

+ Honors Ethics

Bristol Community College 2008-2009
* Pursued courses in Deaf studies
* American Sign Language 3, 4
*  Member of Deaf studies club

University of New Hampshire Manchester 2009-2012
* Bachelor's Degree in ASL/English Interpretation
* Completed a course in Microsoft Word, Excel and Powerpoint

* Efficiently and quickly mastered use of different operating systems including
Jordan's Order Management System and Jiffy Lube Purchase Order Systems

* Experienced with Microsoft Windows, Word, PowerPoint, Excel

* ['ve volunteered at Deaf Inc. in Taunton, Ma from the summer of '08 to the
summer of '09. During that time, my responsibilities were to make outbound calls
for charitable donations or to request information for consumers, file office
paperwork, make copies, basic repair work around the office, setting up for and
helping organize events, and miscellaneous tasks that may arise.

*  During my time at Bristol Community College, | was part of a team who
organized and held a Deaf Awareness Week event and ASL club fundraiser.



Employment Experience:

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services 7/15-Current
Operations Manager; Program Coordinator
* |T maintenance and security

*  Website development and implementation

* Accounts receivable and credit card spending tracking

¢ Coordinating Family Sign Language Program and Deafblind Equipment Program
¢ Direct Supervisor to Front Desk staff member.

* Resolve interoffice prablems including staff, consumers and technology

* Fundraising efforts including annual letter and auction

+ Direct assistance to the Director and Accountant

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services 4/11-7/15

1&R Specialist; Administrative Assistant; Program Coordinator
* Answer ali incoming mediums of communication including phone, video phone,
email, TTY and fax.
+ Create and maintain multiple databases including incoming donations and payments,
available resources, and community contacts.
» Distribute information and resources via mail, email, phone, video phone and internet
forums.
+ Create, format, edit, and distribute forms and documents for staff members.
* Provide support to the Deaf and Hard of Hearing Education Initiative Project:
o Provide staff support at educational trainings and workshops
o Preparation of materials for trainings as well as information packets for
families, educators and the community related to the education of
children and youth with hearing loss
o Additional tasks as needed to assist with the DHHEIP
o Provide information and referrals to families, educators and the
community regarding services for Deaf and Hard of Hearing children and
youth.,
* General office staff support including support to the Executive Director and NH-TEDP
coordinator
* Coordinator for Family Sign Language Program and Deaf-Blind Equipment
Distribution Program

Uno’s Chicago Restaurant 9/09-Current
Server

* Multi-task and coordinate with coworkers to deliver the highest customer satisfaction
possible

Remain organized and efficient in a fast-paced environment

Seat, serve and attend to customer needs.

Inform customers of products and promotions

Prepare and deliver food and beverage items

Work as a team to maintain a clean and sanitary workplace

Jordan’s Furniture 8/07-7/09

Clearance Sales Associate
* Provide first class customer service to assist customers with purchases and inform



References:

them of product options
Extensive use of several different computer programs for inventory and point-of-sale
purposes

e Up-sell warranty and product protection plans

¢ Assemble and prepare furniture for sale

* Position furniture on the sales floor in a professional manner to entice sales

* Work as a team with co-workers to produce a safe professional environment
Jiffy Lube 1/07-6/07

Customer Service Advisor/Lube Technician

Asked customers pertinent questions to better assist them with their purchase
decision

* Entered customer information and product selection into the computer program
* Provided information on products offered by the company to the customer

¢ Informed co-workers of customers requests

* Performed technical maintenance on customer vehicles

* Maintained a safe work environment

World Wide Enterprise 4/04-9/05

Warehouse Laborer

Safely managed machinery and operated forklift

Selected and packaged customer orders in preparation for delivery

Delivered special ordered/ emergency goods to customers using a company vehicle
Assisted customers with order inquiries and product information

Standard warehouse duties including shop maintenance, sweeping, opening and
closing facilities

Organized products in an efficient and safe manner inside a large warehouse



Jola Leary

Professional Goals

e To gain experience in all aspects of the Sign Language Interpretation field
e To become nationally certified as a Sign Language Interpreter
e To establish lasting connections with the Deaf community of New Hampshire

Education

University of New Hampshire at Manchester (3.81 GPA) 2011 - 2015
Bachelor of Science - Sign Language Interpretation
Awards: Presidents Leadership Award for UNH Manchester (2015)
UNH Manchester Student Leadership Award (2014)

Relevant Coursework:

e American Sign Language courses 1-6

e Sociocultural Perspective on Deaf Community

e Ethics and Professional Standards for Interpreters

e Field Experience I & 11

e Studies in Project Management

Experience

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc., Concord, NH 2015 - Present
Information and Referral Specialist

e Work diligently to complete tasks correctly and in a timely manner

e Maintain positive work habits to ensure staff and consumer satisfaction
Community Bridges, Concord, NH 2015 - Present
Direct Service Professional

e Provide support to members of the community who live with intellectual disabilities

e Promote interpersonal skills with the Hearing and Deaf community
University of New Hampshire at Manchester, Manchester, NH 2012-2015
Student Activities Promotor

e Helped students become involved with activities on campus

e Planned various student activities using Word, Excel, and PowerPoint

e Collaborated with other student employees to organize and run student events

References are available upon request.



Virginia M. Barry, Ph.D.
Commissioner of Education
Tel. 603-271-3144

Paul K. Leather
Deputy Commissioner of Education
Tel. 603-271-3801

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUGATION
101 Pleasant Street
Concord, N.H. 03301
FAX 603-271-1953
Citizens Services Line 1-800-339-9900

March 13, 2015

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Education to contract with Northeast Deaf and Hard of
Hearing Services, Concord, New Hampshire (vendor code 159021) to develop and implement a statewide
technical assistance (TA) and professional development (PD) system designed to increase the
implementation of effective practices and enhance outcomes for students who are deaf and hard of
hearing and their families. This contract will be effective from Governor and Council approval through
December 31, 2017 in an amount not to exceed $600,000.00. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding is available in the account titled Special Education-Elem/Sec, pending legislative approval of the
next two biennial budgets.
FY’15 FY’16

EY'15 EFY'17 FY'18
$100,000.00  $200,000.00

56-562510-41100000-102-500731 $200,000.00 $100,000.00

Contracts for Program Services

EXPLANATION

The technical assistance/professional development (TA/PD) system will be designed using adult leaming
methods and strategies to:

e Coordinate and provide TA/PD for administrators/decision makers, teachers, families and
professionals with information about federal statutes, policy guidance, and promising practices
from the field of deaf education;

o Provide TA/PD resources and information regarding the New Hampshire Educational Service
Guidelines: Meeting the Needs of Students who are Deaf and Hard of Hearing.

TDD Access: Retay NH 711
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Executive Council

March 13, 2015

Page Two

s Coordinate and provide specific TA/PD based on the national initiative, funded by the Office of
Special Education Program- Building State Capacity, to increase the educational, career and
lifetime choices available to individuals who are deaf or hard of hearing and to improve
postsecondary outcomes for individuals who are deaf or hard of hearing, including those with co-
occurring disabilities.

This contract will support the Bureau of Special Education in meeting the legislative mandate to provide
technical assistance based on:

RSA 186-C:3(2)(II]) ~ The department of education shall provide technical assistance and information to
the school districts so that the districts may effectively and efficiently identify, clarify and address their
specific responsibilities under state and federal special education laws. This assistance shall include the
provision of mediation services to resolve special education disputes and the provision of expertise
regarding specific educationally disabling conditions. Whenever technical assistance of a specialized
nature, beyond that available in the department, is required, the department shall assume a leadership
role in identifying sources of such assistance in other state agencies, the federal government, volunteer
Services or the private sector.

A Request for Proposals (RFP) was advertised in the Manchester Union Leader on November 5%,
November 6", and November 7", 2014 and posted on the Department of Education’s website. There
were three (3) proposals submitted to the Request for Proposals: “New Hampshire Deaf Education
Technical Assistance and Professional Development Initiative,” Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing
Services; Southeast Regional Education Services Center, Inc.; and ATECH Services.

The proposals were reviewed by a team of four, Amy Aiello, Next Steps NH; Lori Noordergraaf, Bureau
of Special Education; Tim Koumrian, Special Education Director, SAU 6 Claremont; and Della Thomas,
National Consultant on Deaf Education. The team looked at criteria such as Significance of Project,
Quality of Services, Management Plan, Budget and Evaluation, see attached rubrics. The Department
requests that Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services be awarded the grant as they meet all the
criteria of the Request for Proposals.

This project will be evaluated by the Department through monthly monitoring of the goals of the contract.
In addition, the vendor will meet with the Department on a monthly basis to discuss the progress in
meeting the objectives of this contract.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Vlrgma& Barry, Ph.D.

Commissioner of Education

VMB:BJR
Enclosures
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Subject: IINH DEAF EDUCATION TECHNICAL ASSITANCE & PROFESSIONAL DEVELOP@

FFORM NUMBER P-37 ( version 1/09)

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION,
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address

NH State Department of Education, Bureau of Special Ed 101 Pleasant Street, Concord, New Hampshire 03301
1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. 57 Regional Drive, Unit D, Concord, NH 03301
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

Number

| 603-224-1850 J see Exhibit B December 31, 2017 $600,000.00
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

Santina Thibedeau, Administrator, Bureau of Special Ed 603-271-6693
1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

22&/ MW% : Susan Wolfe-Downes, Executive Director
19

1.13  Acknowled t: State of , County of = 3
nowledgemen ate o ounty o IMLZIZRHW”‘CK 1

On I iﬂl ] 2 2015 l , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to bd the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity

indicated in block 1.12. 7

1.13.1 Signature of NetaryH6irc or Justice of the Peace " 7 /
= P

Seall  UwWeewT W Youmnrtz ——— R
1.13.2 Name and Title of Netasy-erJustise of the Peace COofut Z}( r. - /2/ 1,0/20/ S
¥
1.14 State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

M/‘L L m«) W Virginia M. Barry, Ph.D., Commissioner of Education

1.16 Approv{lby the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel {if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

e J AL AN

1.18 Approval by the Goverror and Executive Council

By: On:

Page | of 4




2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(**Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials 1 D
DateZs 1/-1§



8. EVENT OF BEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

10, TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be

Contractor Initials 81/1/6
Date 2 —11=15



attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers® Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
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intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials W
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EXHIBIT A

Services to be Provided

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. will provide the following services under the
contract: New Hampshire Deaf Education Technical Assistance and Professional Development
inifiative for the following fiscal years:

FY'15 upon Governor and Council approval through June 30, 2015
FY'16 ~ July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016

FY'17 ~ July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017

FY'18 ~ July 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017

To build on the current New Hampshire Deaf and Hard of Hearing Education Initiative:

» Implement the current statewide model that builds the capacity to disseminate and implement
the New Hampshire Educational Service Guidelines: Meeting the Needs of Students who are Deaf
and Hard of Hearing:

¢ Design and deliver technical assistance and protessional development trainings that incorporate

researched based practices and resources to implement the New Hampshire Educational Service

Guidelines for Students who are Deaf and Hard of Hearing;
¢ Conduct a pre/post annual evaluation of each statewide trainings and make necessary
improvements to the initiative for each year of implementation.

» Coordinate the distribution of resources and information to schools, families, and students who
are deaf and hard of hearing. The resources and information must support the findings and
information of New Hampshire Educational Service Guidelines: Meeting the Needs of Students
who are Deaf and Hard of Hearing.

» Coordinate and provide technical assistance and professional development based on the national
initiative funded by the Office of Special Education Program, to increase the educational, career
and lifetime choices available to individuals who are deaf or hard of hearing and to improve
postsecondary outcomes for individuals who are deaf or hard of hearing, including those with co-
occurring disabilities:

s Atftend and participate in all national, state and regional meetings;

o Utilize resources and participate in webinars and specialized training activities
provided by the NH Transition PEPNET 2 Project;

s Collect data required for the NH Transition PEPNET 2Project;

¢ Provide supports including communication access for NH Transition PEPNET 2 Project
team members;

¢ Accomplish goals included in the NH Transition PEPNET 2 Project State Pian;

e Develop training materials such as brochures and manuals;

¢ Provide awareness and disseminate information to schools and families about the
NH Transition PEPNET 2 Project.

» Assistin coordinated training strategies for personnel preparation, professional development,
and system development of certified personnel, including interpreting and other related service
providers to students who are deaf or hearing impaired.

» Attend other assigned meetings as requested that support the Bureau of Special Education
initiatives.

Initials S#1_D
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General Expenses:

EXHIBIT B

Budget and Payment Method

Budget {period ending December 31, 2017)
Account: 06-56-56-562510-41100000-102-500731

FY'15 FY'16 FY'17 FY'18

Description of Services G&C approval - | July 1, 2015- July 1, 2016- July 1, 2017 -

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016 June 30,2017 | December 31,2017
Project Coordinator 30,000.00 61,200.00 62,424.00 31.836.24
Executive Director 4,369.00 8912.76 2,091.00 4,636.42
Assistant 6,500.00 13,260.00 13,525.00 3.897.85
Bookkeeper 1,638.00 3,341.52 3,408.35 1,738.26
Staff Support 1,000.00 2,040.00 2,081.00 1,061.21
Clerical Support 665.00 1,356.60 1,383.73 705.70
Benefits 8,371.00 17,076.84 17,418.38 8,883.37
Travel 3.100.00 6.324.00 6,450.48 3,289.74
Professional Development 13.657.00 27.236.28 25,781.01 14,148.32
Consultants 7.192.00 13,408.72 11,917.42 6,077 .88
Interpreters 2.250.00 4,590.00 4,681.80 2,387.72
Communication Access Real
Time Translation (CART ) 4,500.00 9,180.00 9.363.60 4,726.43
Website Maintenance/
Expansion 1,950.00 3.570.00 3,641.40 1,857.11
Office Supplies 1,450.00 1,958.00 1,997.16 1,018.55
Postage/Telecommunications 1,950.00 3,570.00 3,641.40 1,857.11
Conference Room for
Trainings 1.500.00 3,060.00 3,121.20 1,591.8]
Assistive
Technical/Equipment 2,500.00 5,100.00 5,202.00 2.653.02
Indirect cost 8% 7,408.00 14,815.28 14,871.07 7,633.26
Total 100.000.00 200,000.00 200,000.00 100,000.00

Limitation on Price:

Upon mutual agreement between the State Contracting Officer and the contractor, line items in this
budget may be adjusted one to another, with +/- 10% of the indicated amount, but in no case shall the
total budget exceed the price limitation per contfract year.

Method of Payment:

Payment will be made on the basis of monthly invoices received by the 10t of the following month which
are supported by a summary of activities that have taken place in accordance with the terms of the

contract. if otherwise comect and acceptable, payment will be made.

Invoices will be submitted to:

Barbara Raymond

NH Department of Education
Bureau of Special Education

101 Pleasant Street

Concord New Hampshire 03301

Initials >
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EXHIBITC

Any document(s) developed and published, as a project of the New Hampshire State Department of
Education ([NHDOE), Bureau of Special Education, will recognize the NHDOE, Bureau of Special Education
as a sponsor. All documents created shall be the property of the Bureau of Special Education.

Inifils S 1>
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State of Nefw Hampshire
Hepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC. is a
New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed April 28, 2000. I further certify that it is in
good standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the

fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 11™ day of February A.D. 2015

%%/

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State
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ACORD.

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

NEDEA

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
4/22/2015

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in fieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUGER _ SOMIACT Sherri Cole
Davns'Towle Morrill & Everett PONE ) 603 225-6611 [ m’c( Noj: 603-225-7935
115 Airport Road EMAL 5. scole@davistowle.com
P O Box 1260 : INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Concord, NH 03302-1260 INSURER A : Maine Mutual Group Insurance Co
INSURED ] INsurer 8 ; Travelers Indemnity Co.
Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing
. INSURERC :
Services, Inc.
. . . INSURER D :
57 Regional Drive, Suite 4
INSURER € : -
Concord, NH 03301-8518 INSURER £ :

COVERAGES

CERTIFICATE NUMBER:

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR "ADDLISUBR POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP_ |
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR_'WVD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DD/YYYY) |(MM/DD/YYYY) \ LIMITS
T 3 ‘
A | GENERAL LIABILITY iBP10950012 04/23/2015|04/23/2016 EACH OCCURRENCE 51,000,000
I !
X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY ‘ | PAMARR IQRENTED ey |5250,000
4
| cLAIMS-MADE | X | occur | | MED EXP (Any one person) | $5,000
K > | PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | 51,000,000
.‘ GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: : PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $2,000,000
I
X Poricy | PR Loc ‘ i . $
" AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY | COMBINEDSINGLEUMIT | ¢
—
' ANY AUTO : BODILY INJURY (Per person) |$
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED
| AUTOS AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per acadent) | $ o
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS | (Per accident)
i ]
A UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR : KL10950012 94123/21_31 5/04/23/2016 EACH OCCURRENCE 51,000,000
X! EXCESS LIAB X | CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE 31,000,000
DED | X| ReTENTION $10000 ; ! s
WORKERS COMPENSATION ‘ i .y |WC STATU- OTH
B .o EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY . 6JUB0G334N51615 04/14/2015|04/14/2016 X |TORY LiMITS ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE } | ! E L. EACH ACCIDENT $500,000
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? N, IN/A
(Mandatory in NH) | €.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $500,000
If yes, describe under : ; :
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below : : i EL. DISEASE - poLiCY LmiT | $500,000
L . j

Workers Compensation 3A States: NH

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schadule, if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Department of Education
101 Pleasant St
Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF,
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED I[N

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

07, 4

ACORD 25 (2010/05) 1
#5180641/M180640
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led of ueumg Semcu Inc.
57 Regional Drive, Unit D

Concord, NH 03301
603-224-1850

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Resolution

I, Norman Lafond, hereby certify that I am the duly elected Chairman of Northeast
Deaf and Hard of Hearing, Services Inc. I hereby certify that a vote was taken on
July 10, 2014 authorizing Susan Wolf-Downes, Executive Director, to sign all
documents required to execute a contract with the State of New Hampshire's
Department of Education.

[ further certify that said vote has not been amended-or repealed and remains in full
force and effect as of this date, January, 2015.

Signature  {ALE G (X LYA AT
Norman Lafond, Chair
g 7/},5

Date

. N N
Signature Sterantd f?[“g\’ Loviss,
Susan Wolf-Downcs “Executive Director
Date M/T7/18




Certificate of Authority

], (4 , 0 Clerk/Secretary of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. do hereby certify
that:
(1) I maintain and have custody of and am familiar with the seal and minute books of the corporation;
(2 I am authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of such books and to affix such seal

to such certificate;

(3) The following (is a) (are) true and complete cop(y)(ies) of the resolution(s) adopted by the board of
directors of the corporation at a meeting of that board on . ZL\Q ¢ 21,2001, which meeting was held in
accordance with the law of the state of incorporation and the by-laws of the corporation;

(4) The following is a true and complete copy of a by-law adopted at a (shareholder){organizational)
meeting on Jun¢ 21 ,200].

(5) The forgoing resolution(s) and by-law are in full force and effect, unamended, as of the date hereof;
and

(6) The following person(s) lawfully occupy the office(s) indicated below:

/y Chairman

‘/‘ #{/‘ Vice- Chairman
10 S Secretary
Treasurer

TN WITNESS WHEREUF, 1'have hereunto set my hand as the Clerk/Secretary ot the Corporation this / day ot

@.amzjd 2041

(Corporate Seat if any)
Clerk/Secretary

(1f the corporation has no seal, the Clerk/Secretary shall acknowledge the certificate before an authorized officer
below)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COUNTY OF ;M-c/ i Ad L

On Fé\) il ,20L>:,before the undersigned officer personally appeared the person identified in
the foregoing certificate, know to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the Clerk/Secretary of the corporation
identified in the foregoing certificate, and acknowledge that _he_ executed the foregoing certificate.

In witness whereof | hereunto set my hand and official seal.




57 Regional Drive, Concord, NH 03301
603-224-1850 Voice, 603-224-0691 TTY
info@ndhhs.org
www.ndhhs.org

Mission Statement

NDHHS is dedicated to serving Deaf and Hard of
Hearing individuals in an environment that is
communicatively unvestricted and “natural’ to them.
NDHHS is committed to hiring staff members who are
fluent in sign language and capable of identifying and
meeting consumers’ preferred mode of communication.
NDHHS seeks to empower, educate and advocate for
equal access and opportunity for Deaf and Hard of
hearing citizens of New Hampshire. We are committed
to the provision of services in a culturally sensitive

environment, Wwhich promotes independence and
productivity.



Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services: Brief Overview

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services Established in 2001, the organization is a
nonprofit entity dedicated to serving the New Hampshire Deaf and Hard of hearing community
through empowerment, education, and advocacy for equal access and opportunity.

Services include but are not limited to:

Information Referral

Information Referral provides the general public with information and assistance related to hearing
loss. The organization maintains a library of resources which includes information about: health
education, audiology, housing, sign language classes, support groups, interpreters, human service
agencies, service coordination, education, vocational rehabilitation, CART, and much more. A
periodic newsletter is available to subscribers and community members through the organization.

Interpreter/CART Referral

The Interpreter/Cart Referral provides statewide referrals for American Sign Language (ASL)
interpreters, oral interpreters, and CART (Communication Access in Real Time) reporters.
Interpreters and reporters work in a variety of settings such as medical, legal, mental health,
employment, educational, civil and recreational. Using the interpreter referral service ensures that
the interpreter or CART reporter you hire will be appropriately qualified. All interpreters are
certified by the NH State Classification System, the National Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf
(RID), or the National Association of the Deaf (NAD), and our CART reporters have certification
from the Nationa! Court Reporters Association

Services for Deaf and Hard of Hearing Students

The organization provides services to enhance the positive educational experience of NH’s Deaf and
Hard of Hearing students. Our Professional Development Partnership, a program offered in
conjunction with the NH Dept. of Education, offers workshops, training and conferences for
educators and support staff working with Deaf and Hard of Hearing students in both self contained
and inclusion settings. The organization also offers information and parent advocacy for parents of
Deaf and Hard of Hearing students trying to navigate the sometimes complex education maze
including IEP’s, 504 plans and educational support services. Our goal is to protect the parent and
student rights and to insure that all NH Deaf and Hard of Hearing students receive appropriate
services.

New Hampshire Telecommunication Equipment Distribution Program (NH-TEDP)
NH-TEDP provides telephone equipment for NH residents whose hearing, speech or mobility loss
interferes with their use of a standard phone. NH-TEDP provides equipment at low or no cost
depending on NH resident eligibility for the program. There is a number of equipment available
which will be individually matched to meet the needs of each applicant to the program. A specialist
is available to assist in finding the most appropriate equipment, especially for individuals who are
not familiar with the type of equipment that would best meet their needs.

Service Coordination/ Advocacy

The Service Coordination/ Advocacy program offers case management referrals for Deaf and Hard
of Hearing individuals. This program offers independent living skills instruction, health education,
and support for those experiencing substance abuse or domestic violence, advocacy for Deaf and
Hard of Hearing adults and children and much more. Service Coordination provides a critical link to
social service agencies. In addition, workshops and health education seminars are provided to the
community. The organization is available to accompany Deaf/Hard of Hearing individuals to




appointments to provide support and advocacy. This service is especially valuable for those
individuals who do not feel that their needs will be met if proceeding on their own.

Relay New Hampshire

Our Relay Specialist is available to make presentations and provide workshops to individuals,
businesses, schools, civic groups and agencies to introduce NH relay various services. The purpose
of the relay service is to allow adaptive equipment users to call a person with a standard phone or
cell phone. Other relay services include Voice Carry Over (VCO), Hearing Carry Over (HCO), and
Speech-to-Speech. (STS) IP technologies made available, Video Relay Service (VRS), IP Relay, and
IP captioned telephones. This enables individuals to connect to a live relay operator via any web
enabled device to make phone calls rather than using a TTY to call a person with a standard phone
or cell phone,

Employment Support Program

Vocational and support services are available for people who are Deaf and Hard of Hearing. The
goal is to assist with employment through job shadowing and other means and to empower
individuals to find employment that is financially rewarding and satisfying.

Family Sign Language Program (FSLP)

The FSLP provides in-home training for hearing parents of deaf and hard of hearing children who
wish to learn American Sign Language. Instructions are provided by trained Deaf and Hard of
Hearing mentors who work with each family individually. For children ages 0-3, the organization
works cooperatively with Early Intervention Services to provide instruction at no cost to families.
For children over age 3, the organization works with local school districts to coordinate provision of
services at low or no cost to families. The goal of the FSLP is to improve family communication
skills and help build strong family relationships.

Outreach Information

Outreach services focus on both educating the general public about issues faced by Deaf and Hard
of Hearing individuals and on reaching out to NH's Deaf and Hard of Hearing citizens on an ongoing
basis. Information is disseminated through the organization's newsletters, special mailings,
workshops, presentations, conferences, as well as through personal contacts.

Emergency Medical Interpreter Service (EMIS)

This service provides qualified medical interpreters after business hours, weekends and federal
holidays to contracted hospitals in NH. On call interpreters will be available within an hour of
contact.

National Deaf-Blind Equipment Distribution Program

The organization’s specialist goal is to get technology into the hands of NH residents with combined
hearing and vision loss so that they can connect with family, friends and communities, Technology
equipment for communication is provided FREE for those who qualify. Installation, training and
technical support are available at no charge.

Peer Support

Individuals coping with hearing loss, will be provided with information on living with a hearing loss,
including available services and assistive devices, followed by emotional support and further
counseling through the hard of hearing or late deafened support groups within the state,
Professional counseling services are available through other agencies.

o Deaf Senior Citizens Social Group
« Deaf Parent Support Group
s Hard of Hearing Social Group



Board of Directors

Name Title

Michael Ritter Vice Chair/Executive Committee
Norman E. LaFond Sr. Chairman/Executive Committee
Peter Simoneau Secretary/Executive Committee
Vincent Youmatz Treasurer/Executive Committee
Eileen Flockhart Board Member/Auction Chairperson
Leanne Weiner Board Member

Jeanne Stine Board Member

Steven Ballou PhD Board Member

Deborah Bailey Board Member

Naomi Payne Board Member

The NDHHS Board of Directors serves without compensation. We are a volunteer community.

1



List of Personnel

Position: Name:

NDHHS Executive Director: Susan Wolf-Downes, MS.
Project Coordinator: Michele Chaplen PsyD., MEd.
Bookkeeper: Michael Mulrennan, MBA., RTRP
Consultant: Kimberlee Pelkey MSW., NHIC.
Staff Support: Paul Baravella

Clerical Support: Adam Barron

Assistant: To be Determined, hiring in process



Susan Wolf-Downes, MS

Professional Experience

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. (NDHHS), Concord, NH
Executive Director

Verizon Center for Customers with Disabilities (VCCD), Mariboro, MA
Program Specialist

N.E. Telephone Dual Party Relay Services, Marlboro, MA
Outreach Manager

Center for Living and Working, Worcester, MA.
Independent Living Skills Specialist

American Sign Language and Deaf Culture Consultant
Independent Contractor

Education:

+ New England College
Masters of Science in Management

s Lesley University
Bachelor of Science in Management

¢ Rochester Institute of Technology/National Technical Institute for the Deaf
Associate of Arts and Sciences in Business

Achievements:
» Nominated for Citizen of the Year (December 2010)

One of the 10 finalists for the Robert Wood Foundation Award (May, 2006)
One of the 4 nominated for New Hampshire Athena Award (4/19/06)

State of New Hampshire Craig R. Benson Governor-CITATION Award (11/21/03)
2003 Alumni Distinguished Award (10/10/03)

2003 SMSD AA Hall of Fame (Leadership Award) (6/28/03)

2002 Co-Master of Ceremony, Deaf Women United Conf. (DWU)

2001 First Executive Director for the State of NH

2001 Lady of Ceremony, Miss Deaf Massachusetts Pageant

2000 Allies Planning Team 5" year (my role as a facilitator)

1998 Champion Award of the Year - Quota Club District 35

1998 Co-chair Allies Conference

1994 MSAD Vice President (2 years)

1994 NYNEX (now known as Verizon) Chairman’'s Team Award for Quality
1994 Chairperson-Mass. State Association for the Deaf, Interpreter Task Force
1990 Woman of the Year - Quota Club District 29

Presenter:

Ongoing speaker for Quota, Lions and Rotary Clubs

Moderator ASLTA (American Sign Language Teacher Association) (March 22 2003)
DWU Co-Presenter on Domestic Violence (November 2002)

Flying Hands, Links Art Program / Fundraising (Co-Master of Ceremony, April 2001)
Miss Massachusetts Pageant (Master of Ceremony, April 2001)
Verizon Jane Doe Event, Boston, MA (October, 2000)

Executive Director’'s Award from New Hampshire Association for the Deaf (June, 2007)

100" Anniversary for New England Home for the Deaf (Master of Ceremony, November 2001)

2001 to Present

1995 to 2001

1991-1995

1988 - 1991

1984 to 1991

May 2006

May 2000

May 1971

Telecommunication for the Deaf International Conference, Anchorage, Alaska, Boston, MA, Washington, DC



Michele Chaplen Psy.D., M.Ed.

Professional Experience

Manchester Program for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing — Manchester, NH  Summer 2014
Teacher of the Deaf

Bear Hollow Trading Post — Andover, NH February 2012-March 2014
Marketing Consultant

Devereux Foundation — Rutland, MA August 2010-February 2012
Therapeutic Day School Clinician

Pre-Doctoral Intern, Boy's Program August 2009-August 2010
Western New England University — Springfield, MA August 2000 — May 2009
Adjunct Faculty Member, Communication Department

Assistant Director, Student Disabilities Department August 1998-May 2005
The Willie Ross School for the Deaf — Longmeadow, MA September 1992-May 1998
Teacher of the Deaf

Education

e Antioch University New England — Keene, NH October 2010

Doctoral Degree in Clinical Psychology ,
Dissertation: Qualitative Research Project, “How Do Adolescents Describe Their Relationship
With Video Games?”

¢ Antioch University New England — Keene, NH June 2007
Master’s Degree in Clinical Psychology

¢ Smith College — Northampton, MA May 1992
Master’s Degree in Education: Children with Special Needs
Rothman Family and Smith Alumnae Scholarship Recipient

¢  Smith College - Northampton, MA May 1990

Bachelor’s Degree in Education and Child Studies
Education Department Liaison, Dean’s List 1989-1991

Professional Certifications

¢ Elementary Education Teaching Certification, #304171
Massachusetts certified 1992-2014 New Hampshire certified 2014- Present

e Children with Special Needs: Audition Teaching Certification #304171
Massachusetts certified 1992-2014 New Hampshire certified 2014- Present



Kimberlee Pelkey MSW., NHIC

Professional Experience

Elliot Hospital ~ Manchester, NH
Deaf and Hard of Hearing Program Administrator/interpreter

KAAP Interpreting Services ~ Concord, NH

Freelance Licensed American Sign Language Interpreter/Transliterator

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services - Concord, NH

Project Coordinator: NH Deaf and Hard of Hearing Education Initiative

October 2013 - Current

Current - Part Time

May 2006 — October 2013

Manchester Program for Deaf and Hard of Hearing Students — Manchester, NH 1-year Tenure

Educational interpreter/Tutor

New York City Department of Education — New York, NY
School Social Worker

New York City Department of Education — New York, NY
Social Worker/Case Manager

The Children’s Aid Society — New York, NY
Program Supervisor

Education

New York University - New York, NY
Master of Social Work (MSW), Advanced Standing Program

New York University - New York, NY
Doctoral Program, 30 credits completed toward PhD.

Gallaudet University - Washington, DC
Graduate Studies in Mental Health and Sign Language Interpreting

University of New Hampshire - Durham, NH
Bachelor of Science in Social Services

Licensure
New Hampshire Sign Language Interpreter (NHICS)

New Hampshire School Social Worker

EIPA Certified Educational interpreter and Local Test Administrator

New York State Certified Clinical Social Worker (CSW)

18-year Tenure

5-year Tenure

6-year Part-Time Tenure



Michael Mulrennan, MBA, RTRP

Professional Experience

Frugal Tax and Accounting — Manchester, NH
Self-Employed, Accounting and Tax Services

Medaglia and Company CPAs — Nashua NH
Senior Accountant

Michae! Reilly CPAs - Haverhill, MA
Senior Accountant

Lowell Community Health Center — Lowell, MA
Temporary Grant Accountant

Shawsheen Community Development — Haverhill, MA
Business Manager

James J Mulrennan, CPA PC - Londonderry, NH
Senior Accountant

Education

Schiller International University
Master's in Business Accounting
New Hampshire College

Bachelor of Science Degree in Accounting

Computer Skills

Certified Quickbooks ProAdvisor — Online and Desktop platforms

May 2008 - Current

January 2007 - April 2008

January 2006 - December 2006

July 2005 - December 2005

September 2001 — June 2005

January 1982 — August 2001

December 2011

May 1982

Experienced with ProSystem Fix, Engagement, Ultratax, ProSeries, Excel

Performed Yellow Book A-133 Audits



Paul Baravella

Professional Experience

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services
I&R Specialist; Administrative Assistant; Program Coordinator

Uno’s Chicago Restaurant
Server

Jordan’s Furniture
Clearance Sales Associate

Jiffy Lube
Customer Service Advisor/Lube Technician

World Wide Enterprise
Warehouse Laborer

Education

Massasoit Community College

Associates Degree Liberal Arts 3.8 GPA

Bristol Community Coliege

Pursued courses in Deaf studies, American Sign Language
University of New Hampshire Manchester

Bachelor's Degree in ASL/English Interpretation

Computer Skills

Efficiently and quickly mastered use of different operating systems
Experienced with Microsoft Windows, Word, PowerPaint, Excel

Volunteer Work

Deaf Inc. in Taunton, Ma.: from the summer of '08 to the summer of '09.
Bristol Community College: Deaf Awareness Week event and ASL club fundraisers

4/11-Current

9/09-Current

8/07-7/09

1/07-6/07

4/04-9/05

2005-2008

2008-2009

2009-2012



Adam Barron

Professional Experience

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services — Concord, NH
Staff Support

Starbuck Café — Beverly, MA
Barista and café attendant

ThrottleNet Inc., - Marblehead, MA
Web Marketing and Development Intern

Equity Office Properties Trust — Boston, MA
Office Services Assistant

Essex Country Club, Manchester by the Sea — Essex, MA
Pro-Shop Sales Assistant

Eddie Bauer Retail Store —~ Peabody, MA
Sales and Stock Worker

Education
Rochester Institute of Technology

Associates Degree, Occupational Studies/Accounting Technology

Professional Summary

2012 - Current

2007 - 2012

2010 - 2011

2005 - 2006

2003 - 2004

2001 - 2002

May 2001

Dedicated, dependable, and enthusiastic employee, with exceptional marketing, office support and

customer service experience.

Computer Skills

MS Word, Excel, Access, Power Point, Publisher
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Northeast Deaf and
Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.

57 chxona] Dnve, Concord, NH 03301
603-224-1850 Voice, 603-224-0691 TTY, 603 856-0242 Fax

NDHHS Bylaws

Version 5.0

Ratified:

April 30,2000
June 1, 2000
May 13, 2001
June 21, 2001
January 13, 2005

ARTICLE | - BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 1: GENERAL POWERS:

The property, affairs and business of the Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. (the Corporation) shall be controlled and
managed by the Board of Directors. Without limiting the generality of the forgoing, such control shall include the power to: hire
employees, professional, clerical and secretarial; enter into employment agreements with employees where deemed advisable;
determine levels of employee compensation, including wages, salaries, bounced and other fringe benefits; terminate the employment of
an employee; determine condition of employment, including hours of work, work responsibility, vacation time, and sick leave; authorize
the purchase or rental of property, and determine all policies of the Corporation with regard to the conduct of business of the
organization. The Board of Directors may from time to time delegate particular responsibilities to specified officers or Committees of the
Corporation as shall deem advisable. They may adopt such rules and regulations for the conduct of their meeting and the management
of the organization not inconsistent with these By-Laws, the Corporation Articles of Agreement or the laws of the State of New
Hampshire as they may deem proper.

SECTION 2: ELIGIBILITY:

The Board of Directors of the Corporation and its Officers shall be at least eighteen (18) years of age and residents of the State of New
Hampshire. At all times, except for temporary periods, due to resignation, death or incapacity of one or more Directors, there shall be not
less than five (5), nor more than thirteen (13) Directors of NDHHS, 51% of the Directors shall be either deaf or hard of hearing, and none
of whom shal! be in the same immediate family or related by blood or marriage.

SECTION 3: NUMBER AND QUALIFICATIONS:
The number of Directors may be increased or diminished by action of a majority of the Board of Directors at any regular or special
meeting, except that no such action shall be effective to remove a Director then in Office.

SECTION 4: TERM OF OFFICE:

The term of each Director shall be three (3) years and until his or her successor shall have been appointed and shall have been qualified,
or until his or her death, resignation or removal in the manner hereinafter provided. At no time may the entire Board of Directors be
slated for reelection, nor at any time may the entire Board of Directors resign in full humber.

SECTION 5: ELECTION:

The Board of Directors shall nominate a slate of Directors for the open directorship positions each year prior to the annual meeting of the
Directors of the Corporation. The Directors of the Corporation shall be notified of such slate of Directors in the notice of each annual
meeting of the Corporation. The Directors of the Corporation shall vote on and elect the Directors at the annual Meeting of the Directors
of the organization.

SECTION 6: SUSPENSION, EXPULSION AND REFUSAL OF MEMBERSHIP TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

With a majority vote of the Board of Directors shall, in their sole and absolute discretion, have the power to suspend or expel a Director or
refuse membership to any individual who refuses to comply with these By-laws or who engages in conduct unbefitting a Director. In such
event the Board of Directors shall deliver written notice of its action to such individual and provide such individual an opportunity to



appear before the Board of Directors within five (5) days notice.

SECTION 7: BOOKS AND RECORDS:
The correct and complete books and records of account and minutes of the proceedings of Members of the Board of Directors shall be
kept by the Secretary of the Corporation, a copy of which shall be placed on file in the offices of the Corporation.

SECTION 8: RESIGNATIONS:

Any Director of the Corporation may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Chairperson of the Board or to the Secretary of the
Corporation. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein; and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of
such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

SECTION 9: REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS:
Any Director may be removed, either with or without cause at any time, by a majority vote of the Directors at a duly called meeting of the
Directors of NDHHS.

SECTION 10: VACANCIES:

Any vacancy of the Board of Directors caused by death, resignation or removal may be filled in by a majority vote of the remaining
Directors. A Director elected to fill a vacancy shall serve for the unexpired term of his or her predecessor in office or until the next annual
meeting, if sooner.

ARTICLE Il - MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ‘

SECTION 1: PLACE OF MEETINGS, ETC:

The Board of Directors may hold its meetings and have one or more offices in such places within or without the State of New Hampshire
as the Board from time to time may determine or, in the case of meetings, as shall be specified or fixed in respective notices or waivers
of notice thereof. The time and place of such meetings shall be fixed by the Chairperson of the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

SECTION 2: SPECIAL MEETINGS:

A special meeting of the Directors for any purpose or purposes, unless otherwise pfescribed by statute, may be called at any time by the
Chairperson of the Board, or upon written application therefore to the Secretary at the request of any four (4) Directors at the time being
in office. Notice of each such meeting shall be mailed to each Director, addressed to such Director at his or her residence or usual place
of business, at least four (4) days before the day on which the meeting is to be held or shali be sent to him or her at such place by
telegraph, cable, facsimile, radio, wireless or email or be given personally or by telephone, not later than the day before the day on which
the meeting is to be held. Every such notice shall state the time and place of the meeting, and shall state the agenda of items to be
discussed at such meeting. No business other than that specified in the agenda contained in the notice for the meeting shall be
transacted at any special meeting of the Directors, without the unanimous written censent of each of the Directors. Notice of any meeting
of the Directors need not be given to any Directors, however, if waived by him or her in writing or by telegraph, cable, facsimile, radio,
wireless or email, whether before or after such meeting be held, or if he or she shall be present at such meeting unless his or her
attendance a the meeting is expressly for the purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfuiiy
convened; and any meeting of the Directors shall be a legal meeting without any notice thereof having been given, if all of the directors
shall be present thereat.

SECTION 3: ANNUAL MEETING: .
An annual meeting of the Corporation shall take place with in 80 days of the close of the fiscal year. The location and time of the meeting
will be decided on by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 4: QUORUM:

At each meeting of the Directors, the presence, in person or by proxy, of a majority of the Directors, shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business except where otherwise provided by faw or by the Articles of Agreement of the Corporation or any amendments
thereto. In the absence of a quorum at any meeting or any adjournment thereof the Directors of the Corporation present in person or by
proxy shall have the power to adjourn the meeting from time to time, until additional Directors necessary to constitute a quorum shall be
present or represented. At any such adjourned meeting at which a quorum is present any business may be transacted which might have
been transacted at the meeting as originally called. Notice of any adjourned meeting of the Directors shall not be required to be given,
except when expressly required by law.

SECTION 5: VOTING:

a) Each Director of the Corporation who has attained the age of eighteen (18) years of age shall, except as otherwise provided by
law, by the Articles of Agreement of the Corporation or by these By-laws, at every meeting of the Directors be entitled to one vote in
person or by proxy.



b) At any meeting of the Directors at which a quorum is present, a majority represented thereat in person or by proxy shall decide
any question brought before such meeting unless a targer or different vote or proportion is required by law or by the Articles of
Agreement of the Corporation or by these By-Laws.

) All voting shall be by voice/sign vote, except that a written ballot may be used when so requested by a majority of the Directors
present at the meeting. If a written ballot shall be used, then each ballot shall state the name of the Director voting, and if such ballot be
cast by proxy, the name of the proxy.

SECTION 6: DIRECTORS® ACTION WITHOUT MEETING:

Any action which, under any provision of the New Hampshire Business Corporation Act, RSA 293-A, may be taken at a meeting of
shareholders, may be taken by alf of the Directors without such a meeting if consent in writing, (including email) setting forth the action so
taken or to be taken, is signed severally or collectively by all Directors. The Secretary shall file such consent or consents with the
minutes of the meetings of the Directors.

SECTION 7: COMPENSATION:

Directors shall receive no compensation for attendance at regular or special meetings or for services rendered to the Corporation, but
may be reimbursed for actual expenses incurred in attending regular or special meetings or incidental to services performed for the
Corporation.

SECTION 8: DIRECTORS' PARTICIPATION IN MEETING BY TELEPHONE:

A Director may participate in a meeting of the Board of Directors by means of conference telephone or similar communication equipment
enabling all Directors participating in the meeting to hear, see or read(via TTY) one another. Participation in a meeting pursuant to this
section shall constitute presence in person at such meeting.

ARTICLE Il - COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 1: DESIGNATION; VACANCIES:

The Board of Directors, by a resolution passed by a majority of the whole Board, may designate such number of their members entitled
to vote (not less than three (3) which may include the Chairperson of the Corporation), as it may from time to time determine, to
constitute a committee for a specified purpose, each committee member of which, unless otherwise determined by the Board, shall
continue to be a member thereof until the expiration of his or her term of office as a Director.

SECTION 2: POWERS:

During the intervals between the meetings of the Board of Directors, each committee of the Board of Directors shall have all of the
powers of the Board of Directors in the management of the business and affairs of the Corporation as are delegated to them, and may
exercise such powers in such manner as the committee shali deem best for the interests of the Corporation in all cases in which specific
direction shall not have been given by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 3: PROCEDURES; MEETINGS; QUORUM:

Each committee shall make its own rules of procedure and shall meet at such times and such place or places as may be provided by
such rules or by resolution of the committee. A majority of the whole number of the members of each committee shall constitute a
quorum at any meeting thereof, and the act of a majority of those present at a meeting at which a guorum is present shall be the act of
the committee. The Board of Directors shall have power at any time to change the members of any committee, to fill vacancies, and to
discharge the committee.

SECTION 4: NOMINATING COMMITTEE:

The Board of Directors, by resolution passed by a majority of the whole Board, may designate members of the Board to constitute a
Nominating Committee, which shall in each case consist of such number of Directors and shall have and may exercise such powers, as
the Board may determine and specify in the respective resolutions appointing them. The Nominating committee shall determine a list of
nominees for the Board of Directors and Officers of the Corporation each year and shall present such list to the Board of Directors for
nomination. The Board of Directors shall have the power at any time to change the members of the Nominating Committee, to fill
vacancies and to discharge the Nominating Committee.

SECTION 5: EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE: .

The Board of Directors, by resolution passed by a majority of the whole Board, may designate members of the Board to constitute an
Executive committee, which shall consist of the chairpersons of each committee of the Board of Directors, and other members as the
Board may determine and specify in the respective resolutions appointing them. The Executive Committee shall have and may exercise
such powers as the Board may determine and specify in the respective resolutions appointing them. The Board of Directors shall have
the power at any time to change the members of the Executive Committee, to fill vacancies, and to discharge the Executive Committee.



SECTION 6: COMPENSATION:
Members of the Nominating Committee, the Executive Committee or of other committees of the Board of Directors shall receive no
compensation for their services of such committees.

ARTICLE IV - OFFICERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 1: NUMBER:

The Officers of the Corporation shall inciude a Chairperson of the Board, a Treasurer, and a Secretary and such other officers as the
Board of Directors my from time to time deem appropriate. One person may hold offices and perform the duties of more than one of said
officers.

SECTION 2: ELECTION, TERM OF OFFICE AND QUALIFICATIONS:
The Officers shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors. Each officer shall hold office until a successor to such office shall have
been elected and shall have qualified, or until the death, resignation, or removal of such officer in the manner hereinafter provided.

SECTION 3: REMOVAL:
Any officer may be removed by the Board of Directors whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Corporation will be served by
such action.

SECTION 4: RESIGNATIONS:

Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board of Directors or to the Chairperson or to the Secretary. Such
resignations shall take effect at the time specified therein; and, unless otherwise specified therein and the acceptance of such resignation
shall not be necessary to make it effective.

SECTION 5: VACANCIES:
A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal or any other cause shall be filled for the unexpired portion of the term in
the manner prescribed by in these By-laws for election or appointment to such office.

SECTION 6: THE CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD:

The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from among the Directors and shall, if present, preside at all meetings of the Board of
Directors. Except where by law the signature of the Secretary is required, the Chairperson of the Board shall possess the power to sign
all certificates, contracts and other instruments of the Corporation which may be authorized by the Board of Directors or by the Executive
Committee. The Chairperson of the Board shall, in general, perform all duties incident to the office of Chairperson of the Board; subject
however to the direction and control of the Board of Directors, and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him or her
by the Board of Directors or by the Executive Committee.

SECTION 7: THE TREASURER:

The Treasurer shall be the financia! officer of the Corporation; shai! have charge and custody of, and be responsible for, all funds of the
Corporation, and deposit all such funds in the name of the corporation in such barks, trust companies or other depositories as shall be
selected by the Board of Directors; shall receive, and give receipts for, money due and payable to the Corporation from any source
whatsoever, and in general, shall perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time may
be assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors, or by the Chairperson.

SECTION 8: THE SECRETARY:

The Secretary shall attend all meetings of the Members, the Board of Directors and shali keep full, true and accurate records of such
meetings. The Secretary, shall be the registered agent of the Corporation; shall keep or cause to be kept in books provided for the
purpose, the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors, these said books are to be kept at the Corporation's offices in Concord,
New Hampshire. The Secretary shall see that all notices are duly given in accordance wit the provisions of these By-laws and as
required by law; shall be the custodian of the records and the seal of the Corporation and see that the seal is affixed to all documents the
execution of which on behalf of the corporation under its seal is duly authorized in accordance of these By-laws; and in general, shall
perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as may, from time to time, be assigned to him or her by the
Board of Directors or by the Chairperson.

SECTION 9: DIRECTOR PRO TEM:
In the event that an Officer is temporarily unavailable or unable to perform his or her duties, the Board of Directors may elect a temporary
replacement pro tem.

SECTION 10: COMPENSATION:
Officers shall receive no compensation for attendance at regular or special meetings or for services rendered to the Corporation, but may



be reimbursed for actual expenses incurred in attending regular or special meetings or incidental to services performed for the
Corporation.

ARTICLE IV - EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The Executive Director shall be the chief executive and administrative officer of the Corporation and shall have general and active
supervision and direction over the day-to-day business and affairs of the Corporation and over its several officers, subject, however to
the direction and control of the Board of Directors. The Executive Director shall sign or counter sign all certificates contracts and other
instruments of the Corporation as authorized by the Board of Directors. The Executive Director shall have such other powers and duties
as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine.

ARTICLE V - CONTRACTS, CHECKS, NOTES, ETC.

SECTION 1: EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS:

All contracts and agreements authorized by and serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors, and all checks, drafts, notes, bonds, bills
of exchange and orders for payment of money shall, unless otherwise directed by the Board of Directors, or unless otherwise required by
law, be signed by any two of the following officers: The Chairperson of the Board, Treasurer or Secretary. The Board of Directors may,
however, authorize any one of said officers to sign contracts, agreements, checks, drafts and orders for the payment of money singly and
without necessity of countersignature, and may designate officers and employees of the Corporation other than those named above, or
different combinations of such officers and employees, who may in the name of the Corporation, execute checks, drafts, and orders for
the payment of money on its behalf.

SECTION 2: LOANS:

No loans shall be contracted on behalif of the Corporation and no negotiable paper shall be signed in its name unless authorized by
resolution of the Board of Directors. When authorized by the Board of Directors so to do, the Chairperson or Treasurer of the
Corporation thereunto authorized may effect loans and advances at any time for the Corporation from any bank, trust company or other
institution, or from any firm, corporation or individual, and for such loans and advances may make, execute and deliver promissory notes,
bonds or other certificates or evidences of indebtedness of the Corporation and, when authorized so to do, may pledge, hypothecate or
transfer an securities or other property of the Corporation as security for any such loans of advances. Such authority may be general or
confined to specific instances.

ARTICLE VI - FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be fixed by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VII - WAIVER OF NOTICE

Whenever any notice is required to be given to any member of the Board of Directors by these By-laws or the Articles of Agreement of
the laws of the State of New Hampshire, a waiver of the notice in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to the notice, whether
before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to giving the notice. »

ARTICLE VIII - AMENDMENTS

These By-laws may be altered, amended, repealed or supplemented, subject to appeal or change by the Board of Directors by an
affirmative vote of the majority of the full Board of Directors, at any meeting or special meeting of the Board of Directors called for the
purpose, provided that notice of the proposed change is given in the notice of the meeting.

ARTICLE IX - INDEMNIFICATION

SECTION 1: PERSONAL LIABILITY OF OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS:
Each Director and Officer shall be indemnified by the Corporation against personal liability to the Corporation for monetary damages or



breach of fiduciary duty as a Director or Officer, or both except in respect to:

1. Any Breach of the Director's and/or Officer's duty to loyalty to the Corporation.

2. Acts or omissions which are not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or knowing violation of the law; or
3. Any transaction from which the Director, Officer or both derived any improper personal benefits.

ARTICLE X - TAX EXEMPT STATUS

These B-laws of the Corporation shall at all times be so construed and limited to enable the Corporation to qualify and continue to qualify
as a voluntary charitable corporation organized and existing under the provisions of Chapter 292 of the Revised Statutes Annotated of
the State of New Hampshire, as amended, and as a tax exempt charitable organization organized and operated for any purpose for
which an organization may be exempt under the provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

ARTICLE X! - CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY

Any possible conflict of interest on the part of any member, director, office or employee in the Corporation, or a member of the immediate
family of any such person, shall be disclosed in writing to the Board of Directors. In addition, when a director has any interest in any
transaction that involves a specific issue before the Board of Directors, any potential conflict of interest shall be made of record through
complete and full written disclosure to the Board of Directors.

Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, a transaction involving a director or officer, or a member of the immediate family of any such
person, shall be prohibited unless it is in the best interests of the Corporation, the transaction is for goods or services in the ordinary
course of business of the Corporation for the actual and reasonable value (or for a discounted value) of the goods or services, the
transaction is fair to the Corporation, and the appropriate actions as set forth herein are taken.

When a transaction involving a director or an officer, or a member of the immediate family of any such person, exceeds Five Hundred
Dollars ($500.00) but is less than Five Thousand Dollars ($5000.00) in a fiscal year, the transaction must be approved by a two-thirds
(213)vote of the Disinterested Directors (as hereinafter defined) without the participation, voting, or presence of any director or officer with
a financial interest in the transaction or a director or officer who has had a pecuniary benefit transaction (as defined in RSA 7:19a, I(c)
with the Corporation in the same fiscal year.

When a transaction involving a director or an officer, or a member of the immediate family of any such person, exceeds Five Thousand
Dollars(§5000.00) in a fiscal year, then: (i) the two-thirds vote of the Disinterested Directors is required; and (ii) prior ta the
consummation of the transaction, the Corporation must publish notice of the transaction in a newspaper of general circulation in the
community in which the Corporation's principal office is located or in a newspaper of general circulation throughout the State of New
Hampshire; and (iii) prior to the consummation of the transaction, the Corporation must provide written notice of the transaction to the

Office of the Director of Charitable Trusts of the Office of the New Hampshire Attornsy General.

The minutes of the meeting in which a transaction is considered to be undertaken pursuant to this conflict of interest policy shall reflect
the disclosure that was made, the abstention from voting of the interested parties and the actual vote itself.

Every new director will be advised of this policy upon assuming the position of director and shall sign a statement acknowledging and
understanding of and agreement to this conflict of interest policy. The Board of Directors will comply with all requirements of New
Hampshire law concerning conflicts of interest related to non-profit entities, and such New Hampshire are hereby incorporated into and
made part of this conflict of interest policy by reference.

For the purposes of this conflict of interest policy, a Disinterested Director is a director who does not have a financial interest in the
transaction under consideration and has not been involved in a different transaction subject to this Conflict of Interest Policy within the
same fiscal year.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, under no circumstances is the Corporation to make any loans to any director or officer of

the Corporation. ' e



ARTICLE XIil - NON-DISCRIMINATION STATEMENT

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc., its Board of Directors, Officers and employees shall not discriminate against any

individual in-regards to board membership, employment and services provided by the Corporation, on the basis of race, color, religion,
sex, or national origin.

NDHHS 57 Regional Drive, Concord, NH 03301 :: 603.224.1850 :: TTY 603.224.0691 :: info@ndhhs.org
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.
57 Regional Drive

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Northeast Deaf and Hard of
Hearing Services, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Organization’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. as of June 30, 2014 and 2013,
and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 6,
2014, on our consideration of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Mo Loy 3 Company, SLE

McLamey & Company, LLC
October 6, 2014

One Tremont Street, Concord, NH .-. Phone: 603-224-4990 .-. Fax: 603-226-0030



Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services
Statements of Financial Position
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

ASSETS

Temporarily Permanently 2014 2013

Current Assets Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total

Cash (Note 2, 5) $ 95600 - 3 - % 95600 § 76,869

Accounts Receivable (Note 2) 22,164 - - 22,164 18,162

Grants Receivable - Current (Note 3, 5) 45,052 - - 45,052 81,968

Prepaid Expenses 3,574 - - 3,574 3,236
Total Current Assets 166,390 - - 166,390 180,235
Fixed Assets (Note 1)

Furniture and Fixtures 6,978 - - 6,978 6,978

Office Equipment, Computers 45,392 - - 45,392 45,392

Software Development, Net 15,028 - - 15,028 -

Accumulated Depreciation (49,408) - - (49,408) (47,887)
Total Fixed Assets, Net 17,991 - - 17,991 4,484
TOTAL ASSETS $ 184,381 5 - 3 - $ 184,381 $ 184,719

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable $ 14980 $ - 3 - $ 14980 § 32,745

Accrued Expenses 6,902 - - 6,902 6,342
Total Current Liabilities 21,882 - - 21,882 39,087
Net Assets

Net Assets (Note 2, 5) 162,499 - - 162,499 145,631
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS § 184,381 § - 5 - § 184,381 § 184,719

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report
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Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services
Statements of Activities
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Temporarily Permanently 2014 2013
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total
Revenue and Support (Note 2. 9)
Foundation Grants $ 37250 % - $ - $ 37250 § 25,000
Government Grants 290,520 - - 290,520 304,645
Contributions 51,900 - - 51,900 51,811
Program Revenue 257,096 - - 257,096 245,373
Referral Fees 61,315 - - 61,315 52,328
Interest Income 20 - - 20 20
TOTAL REVENUE AND SUPPORT 698,101 - - 698,101 679,178
Functional Expenses
Program Services
Adult Education 167,661 - - 167,661 169,158
Outreach 65,507 - - 65,507 52,281
Referral Services 326,207 - - 326,207 303,868
TTY - Relay 66,385 - - 66,385 71,037
Supporting Services
General & Administrative 50,683 - - 50,683 53,697
Fund Raising 4,790 - - 4,790 4936
TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 681,234 - - 681,234 654,977
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (Note 9) 16,868 - - 16,868 24,202
Net Assets - Beginning of Year 145,631 - - 145,631 121,430
NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 162,499 § - $ - $ 162,499 § 145,631

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report
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Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services
Statements of Cash Flows
June 30, 2014 and 2013

2014 2013

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in Net Assets $ 16,868 § 24,202
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities

Depreciation 1,521 3,541
Amortization 1,670 -
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable : (4,002) 7,418
(Increase) decrease in grants receivable 36,916 (54,813)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (338) 159
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (17,766) 23,226
Increase (decrease) in other accrued liabilities 560 4,967

Increase (decrease) in payroll taxes - -

Total adjustments 18,561 (15,501)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ 35429 % 8,700

Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities - -

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Proceeds related to fixed asset settlement - -

Acquisition of office equipment & furniture (16,698) (1,741)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (16,698) (1,741)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH $ 18,731  § 6,960
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 5 76,869 § 69,909
CASH AT END OF YEAR $ 95,600 § 76,869

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report
Page 4



g afeq

upoday sJoupny pue sa10N Suiduedwosdy sag

LL6'VS9 §  ¥ETI89 $§  06LY §  £89°0S $ 09LST9 $  S8€99 §  LOT9ZE § LOSS9 § 199°L91 §
Trs'e 061°¢ - 061°¢ - - - - -
9LSE 0£0¥ 9¢ S0S 684°¢€ 10S EEP'T - 99
002842 00V v - 99Z vEL'YY 01L°11 vTr9l1 - 000°91
060°11 06511 - SZ8 $9L°01 - S16 - 058°6
00V - - - - - - - -
991 St6°81 SST - 68981 - ¥79 97691 oPIL‘1
1¥0°L 6v1°L - 9LLT TLEY Ly 1¥0°c - 098
SISL T59°€ 89L ¥88°C £6 69€°1 - Tl
v01°91 0¥0°C - 444 965°1 019 09 S61 L81
SIZY 0TL'S - - 0TL'S 0S 0SL‘€E 0ST 0L91
S9LY 6019 - €18 96T°S SE8‘1 - - 19%°¢
SOv9¢ 9LE'TE - 069°€1 989°81 989°S 9L8°9 - ¥T1'9
6VLE v68°S - - ¥68°S - ¥68°S - -
0ty 8T¢ - Syl £81 6 76 - -
62T°S 601°LY - - 601°L¥ - 09€°1 £96°1 1 981°'v¢
vL8 661°p 661y - - - - - -
81697 06922 - 6£8°1 168°0T 798°¢ 661°01 929 ¥91°9
9€L‘6TE E1Ev6T - ¥86°CT 62TE°1LT S60°6€ £85°0L1 0LS‘9 780°SS
10Z°11 80001 - LTl 9€L‘8 160°C SSLE PEL'L 9511
OLI‘L 9¢£8°¢ - 206 SE6°T - 759 0z1 91T
T96°0Y v6S‘vH - - v6S v 88C YLI‘LE 850°l ¥L0°9
SSS9L Tiv'801 - ¥91 6¥7°801 - S1Z°09 99t°9Z 89612
SLT 001 - 001 - - - - -
6SL $ 0sT $ -8 - $ 0sz $ -3 0S¢ $ - $ - $
sasuadxg sasuadxg Buisreyy QAIRNSIUTWPY SA2TAIG Kepy SIOIAIG yorannQ uotiesonpy

e0L [e10l puny 7 [eloUaD) urerdolid 1oL - AlL [eL3)oy

€107 ¥10T SADIAYIS WVHD0Ud

€107 Pu® QT ‘0€ dung papuy s1edX 3} 104
sasuadx 7 [puondun g jo sjUIMI) LIS

$391A.19G SuLIval] JO pAvH pue JEa(] }SBIYPION

SISNHdXH TV.IOL
uoneziowy pue uonelosaidag

asuadxq 201130

uay

S901AI9S (2327 29 Sununoooy
sag1ey ) 20UBUI]ASAISIU]
SNOSUEB[[20SIA

sia8ed ‘ouoydoja],

so1ddng

Bururel ], quowdo[aas( Je1s
asuadxq s92,] [eL9)oYy
USGIM X [tewry

aoueInsuj

aouruAuUIEL|A 29 SiTeday]
sasuao1] ‘suonduosqng ‘sangg
Junjnsuon

$99,] Suisiey pun,

saxe] [[0lAeyg

sosuadxy [ouuosiag

[oABIL],

suojediqng 2 Junuilyg

$93,] s19ja1diaiy]

sasuadxyg urerdoad
suonnqLyuon)

Juistuaapy



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION
Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. (the "Organization") is a non-profit
organization dedicated to serving deaf and hard of hearing individuals in a culturally
sensitive environment that is communicationally unrestricted and “natural”, and which
promotes independence and productivity. It is the mission of the organization to
empower, educate and advocate for equal access and opportunity for deaf and hard of
hearing citizens of New Hampshire.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board in its Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under SFAS
No. 117, the Organization is required to report information regarding its financial
position and activities according to three classes of net assets; unrestricted net assets,
which represents the expendable resources that are available for operations at
management’s discretion; temporarily restricted net assets, which represents resources
restricted by donors as to purpose or by the passage of time; and permanently restricted
net assets, which represent resources whose use by the organization is limited by donor-
imposed stipulations that neither expire by passage of time nor can be fulfilled or
otherwise removed by the actions of the organization. Northeast Deaf and Hard of
Hearing Services, Inc. presently has no permanently restricted net assets.

Revenue Recognition :

Revenue is recognized as services are rendered using the accrual method of accounting.
The Organization recognizes all contributions as revenue in the period received.
Contributions are reported as unrestricted or as restricted depending on the existence of
donor stipulations that limit the use of the contribution. However, donor-restricted
contributions whose restrictions are met in the same reporting period are reported as
unrestricted contributions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, temporary cash investments which can be
turned into cash in three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable are considered by management to be fully collectible and
accordingly no allowance for doubtful accounts is considered necessary.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles requires the use of estimates made by the management of the
Organization.

Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are charged to operations when incurred.
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NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, or, if donated, at the fair value at the date
of donation. Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. follows the policy of
capitalizing expenditures for property and equipment in excess of $500. Major
renewals and improvements are capitalized, while replacements, maintenance and
repairs, which do not materially extend the useful lives of the assets, are expensed.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Office Equipment and Furniture 5-7 years
Development of Software 5 years

Depreciation amounts expensed and reflected in the statements of activities for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 is $1,521 and $3,541, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code. In addition, the Organization qualifies for the charitable
contribution deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(A) and has been classified as an
organization other than a private foundation under Section 509(a)(2).

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued interpretation No. 48
(“FIN 48), “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes” which the Organization
elected to adopt in the current year. FIN 48 establishes the minimum theshold for
recognizing, and a system for measuring, the benefits of tax return positions in
financial statements. Management has analyzed the Organization’s tax positions taken
on its tax returns for all open tax years (tax years ended June 2009 — 2011) for puposes
of implementing FIN 48, and has concluded that no additional provision for income
tax is required in the Organization’s financial statements.

Functional Expense Allocation

The cost of providing various programs and other activities has been summarized in the
statement of support and functional expenses, and the changes in fund balances.
Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting
services benefited.  Allocations have been made by the management of the
Organization.

Donated Services

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets or that
require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and
would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, are recorded at their
fair values in the period received

Page 7



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

NOTE 3 - GRANTS RECEIVABLE

Grants receivable represent grants for which the donor organization has
unconditionally committed to providing funding in the future. Grants receivable are
recognized as income on the statement of activities at the time the commitment is
made by the donor organization. Grant commitments which will not be received
within the next twelve months are reflected as other assets on the statement of
financial position. The method of accounting for grants receivable has the affect of
creating fluctuations between positive and negative changes in net assets from year to
year as reflected on the statement of activities.

Grants for which the donor organization places contingencies are recognized as
support when the funds are actually received or when the contingency has been
satisfied.

All grants are expected to be received; therefore, no allowance for doubtful accounts
has been established.

NOTE 4 - PENSION PLAN
Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. sponsors a 403(b) Tax Deferred
Annuity Plan. Employees are eligible to participate in the plan following a 12
consecutive month period of employment of at least 1,000 hours of service. All
eligible employees may elect to have employee elective deferrals. Northeast Deaf and
Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. currently makes no mandatory or discretionary
contributions.

NOTE 5 - RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS
All of the restrictions on net assets at June 30 relate to revenue from grants and are
available for the following purposes:
2014 2013
- $ -
- $ -

Grants
Totals

Alon

NOTE 6 - SUPPLEMENTAL CASH INFORMATION

There were no non cash activities during 2014 and 2013.

NOTE 7 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
The Organization maintains an operating account at one bank. Operating accounts at
an institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to
$250,000. Cash at this institution exceeded Federally insured limits at June 30, 2014
and 2013 by $0 and $0, respectively.

The Organization receives all its revenue from New Hampshire sources.
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NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS
The Organization entered into a lease in Concord starting in October 2007 for four
years. The rent is $2,850 per month for the first two years with an increase in the third
and fourth years. In 2011 the lease was extended to October 2014 for $3,700 per month.
Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were $44,400 and $44,400,
respectively.

The Organization entered into a lease in Concord starting in June 2012. The lease is for
a copier for $135 per month for five years with $2,000 down. Lease expense for the
years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were $2,021 and $1,616, respectively. There are
no other operating lease commitments.

Future minimum lease payments required for the year ended:

June 30, 2015 516,416
June 30, 2016 $1,616
June 30, 2017 $1,481

NOTE 9 - CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
The change in net assets for the years ending June 30, 2014 and 2013 are $16,868 and,
$24,202 respectively.

NOTE 10 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through October 6, 2014, which is the
date the financial statements were available to be issued for events requiring recording or
disclosure in the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2014 and none were
found.
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McLarney & Company, LL.C

Certified Public Accountants & Business Advisors
Brian F. McLamey, MBA, CPA/PES Robert F. Siggens, MST, CPA
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees of

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.
57 Regional Drive

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Gevernment Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the
financial statements of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of
financial position as of June 30, 2014, and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 6, 2014.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statéments, but not -for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the .
effectiveness of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.’s internal control. Accordmgly, we do not express an opinion on -
the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the .
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. ‘A materidl-
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such: that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement. of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. - L

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opmlon on the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s internal control and
compllancc Accordingly, this communication js not suitable for any other purpose.

Mo Larnoy 3 Company, LLE

McLamey & Company, LLC
October 6, 2014
One Tremont Street, Concord, NH .-. Phone: 603-2244990 -. Fax: 603-226-0030
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